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Teckwah Industrial Corporation Ltd  (“Teckwah” or “the Group”) is 
a group of companies with capabilities to provide printing & packaging, 
logistics and online distribution services. Established in 1968, Teckwah 
serves both regional and multinational customers through its network of 
42 locations across 12 countries in Asia. Teckwah’s shares are quoted on 
the Singapore Exchange (SGX: Teckwah). 

For more information on Teckwah 
please visit our website: www.teckwah.com.sg 

Teckwah Industrial Corporation Ltd

About
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Our Core Business

The Group’s print related business 

serves the Print Components & 

Turnkey Services needs of local and 

multinational customers operating in 

the Asia Pacifi c region.

The non-print related business 

comprises both the logistics and 

online businesses. 

Teckwah will be The Preferred Business Partner of 

Global Companies, creating and delivering the 

Best-in-Class Value Chain Solutions worldwide.

VISION

“With our plans and strategies synchronized and in motion, 
we are ready to bring Teckwah onto a new phase of growth. Armed with 

a strong war chest, we will continue to search for viable businesses that can 
add value to and support Teckwah’s growth in the years ahead. ”

- Thomas Chua, Chairman and Managing Director
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Country Teckwah  Alliance  Total
 Location Location

Australia 1 3 4
China 5 5 10
Hong Kong 0 1 1
India 0 5 5
Indonesia 1 1 2
Japan 1 0 1
Korea 1 4 5
Malaysia 4 2 6
Philippines 0 1 1
Singapore 2 0 2
Thailand 1 1 2
Taiwan 1 2 3

Total 17 25 42
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Teckwah’s Footprint
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THE YEAR IN PERSPECTIVE 

Having invested time and resources over the last few years to re-engineer 

our business, our efforts are fi nally delivering results. FY2005 was both a 

fruitful yet challenging year for all of us at Teckwah Industrial Corporation 

Ltd (“Teckwah” or “the Group”). The demand for our services was stronger 

and many of our subsidiaries reported good performance. The year also saw 

our entry into the markets in Australia and New Zealand with the acquisition 

of the value chain business in Australia. The print-related business continues 

to dominate as our main revenue driver delivering stronger performance 

this year compared to the previous fi nancial year. The non-print related 

business also reported satisfactory growth in its logistics business unit. The 

performance of our online business on the other hand, was below our 

expectations and we will be reviewing the viability of this business unit in the 

new fi nancial year. At the close of FY2005, we are proud to present a strong 

balance sheet and deliver a healthy cash fl ow report to our shareholders. 

A REVIEW OF OUR OPERATIONS

In FY2005, the Group’s turnover rose 23.9% to $181.8 million and our 

net profi t after tax rose 8% to $5.3  million. By business segments, our 

print related business, which contributed $161.7 million and accounted for 

88.9% of our total turnover, continues to lead as the Group’s major business 

contributor. The 11.1% balance of our turnover comprises contribution from 

our non-print related businesses. Geographically, Singapore continues to 

lead as the largest revenue contributor accounting for 62.5% of the Group’s 

total turnover. This is followed by China which accounted for 25.7% of the 

Group’s total turnover.  

The Group marked a signifi cant footprint in Australia this year with the 

acquisition of the value chain business from Columbia Pelikan Pty Ltd, 

one of Australia’s largest turnkey software manufacturers. This acquisition 

is a strategic fi rst step for Teckwah and most importantly, it led to the 

establishment of our business relationship with a leading global IT software 

company.  The market for the value chain business will become increasingly 

competitive;  the synergies between our new acquisition and our existing 

Chairman’s Message To Shareholders
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value chain business will give us the  opportunity to further enhance our 

knowledge and competencies within Teckwah. This advantage is clearly 

demonstrated by the qualifi cation of our newly established Australian 

subsidiary, Teckwah Value Chain Pty Ltd (“Teckwah Australia”) as an 

authorized replicator for software manufacturing in Australia and New 

Zealand upon the completion of our acquisition. The  greater signifi cance 

is the fact that in itself, our newly acquired authorized replicator status also 

validates the high level of system and quality control capabilities that are 

already present in the Group. With the stage being set, we hope to be able 

to extend our replicating capabilities from Australia to other countries in the 

region in the not too distant future. 

On the business front, our print-related business comprises the print 

component and the turnkey manufacturing. Contributions from the print 

component are primarily from our operations in Singapore, Malaysia, 

Indonesia  and China . Supporting the growth of the turnkey manufacturing 

this year was the stronger demand from  markets in Singapore and China. 

Two other new contributors in the print-related business this year were our 

subsidiaries in Japan and  Australia. 

The non-print related business,  a relatively new business segment for the 

Group,  comprises the logistics services and online distribution services. The 

services provided by our logistics unit include third party logistics, reverse 

logistics and mission critical logistics. The latter, a specialized branch of 

logistics services, is provided by JNE Logistics Singapore Pte Ltd (“JNE”) 

which was acquired in 2004. JNE, which turned in its fi rst full year revenue 

this year, has performed satisfactorily. 

The other component in our non-print related business - online distribution 

services , however did not fare well due to the fact that the market is still in its 

infant stage and substantial investments and time will need to be committed 

to grow this business. In view of the inability of the online distribution 

business to be self suffi cient, we will be scaling down  our investment and 

reduce expenses in this business in FY2006. 
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The Group’s pretax operating profi t in FY2005 rose by 2.3% from $8.6 

million to $8.8 million. With the exception of the online distribution business, 

all the subsidiaries of the Group have performed profi tably. The online 

distribution business incurred a loss of $4.9 million in FY2005. The latter is 

mainly due to the premature market for online games. On a year-on-year 

comparison, the Group’s operational performance has been satisfactory 

considering the incurrence of a full year rental impact. The higher operating 

expenses incurred in FY2005 were mainly due to the full year recognition of 

the operating expenses relating to the mission critical logistics business and 

the full year rental expenses for the building. In aggregate, these expenses 

gave rise to a 37.2% increase in the Group’s operating expenses for the 

year under review. 

Overall, I am pleased to inform that the Group’s balance sheet remained 

strong and our cash fl ow healthy. The Group’s operations generated a cash 

fl ow of $13.4 million before working capital changes and we ended the 

year with a positive cash fl ow of $11.0 million after utilizing $5.9 million 

cash for the acquisition of the new businesses and $4.3 million cash for the 

upgrading of our plant and equipment. At the close of FY2005, our cash 

balance amounted to $22.6 million and our gearing stood at 0.06 times. 

THE PROSPECTS AHEAD 

Going forward, our print related business will continue to be our main 

business contributor. To ensure that we stay relevant to our customers, 

we will drive ourselves towards growing niche competencies that have the 

abilities to sharpen our competitive edge and ensure that we stay abreast 

of competition. More importantly, new competencies that are introduced 

into the Teckwah Group must bring with them added value that can help 

continually improve the quality of our services and our delivery to our 

customers. Our management team at Teckwah will be carefully evaluating 

the yield on our investments to ensure that our risks are not unnecessarily 

compromised.  Furthermore, to strengthen our position as a leading 

packaging printer in Singapore, Indonesia , Malaysia and China, we will 

be upgrading our equipment with newer technology to complement the 

changing needs of our customers in these markets. 
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Geographically, Singapore will remain as the Group’s headquarter while China 

will be a growth region for us especially in the print related business. Having 

established a fi rm footprint in China, we will continue to focus and tap into 

the large growth potentials embedded in this market. Nevertheless we are 

also cognizant that surrounded by the increasingly competitive landscape, 

the gradient of the growth curve in China may not be as steep as was seen 

in the past. Hence it may now require a longer period to grow and cultivate 

business in the country. 

The non-print related business plans to develop new capabilities  in providing 

after market services in the areas of reconditioning, repair, remarketing and 

disposal of IT equipment. These business activities will likely focus its attention 

in countries like China, India, Korea, Singapore and Taiwan. 

As the Group proceeds to re-evaluate its online distribution business, 

we will eventually reduce our participation in this segment. The existing 

infrastructure presently used to support our online distribution of computer 

games activities can be deployed to support our online distribution for other 

software business. When reduced, the online distribution  unit will eventually 

become a relatively insignifi cant contributor to our total business. 

With our plans and strategies synchronized and in motion, we are ready to 

bring Teckwah onto a new phase of growth. Armed with a strong war chest, 

we will continue to search for viable businesses that can add value to and 

support Teckwah’s growth in the years ahead. 

In closing, I would like to thank our customers, shareholders, business 

associates and employees for your confi dence in Teckwah in FY2005. We 

will endeavour to bring more achievements to you in the future and look 

forward to your support as we move into the new fi nancial year.

For the fi nancial year ended 31 December 2005, the Board recommends 

a fi rst and fi nal dividend of 10% per share, subject to the approval of the 

shareholders at the forthcoming board meeting. 

Thomas Chua Kee Seng

Chairman and Managing Director 
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Board of Directors
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Mr Thomas Chua Kee Seng
Age: 52
Chairman & Managing Director

Mr Chua was appointed Chairman of the Board 
of Directors (“the Board”) of Teckwah Industrial 
Corporation Ltd (“the Company”) on 1 April 2002, 
having served as Deputy Chairman since July 1999, 
and appointed to the Board on 30 June 1983. He is 
also a member of the Nominating Committee and 
Share Options Scheme Committee. Currently he is the 
Chairman of General Affairs Committee and Member of 
Standing Committee of the Singapore Chinese Chamber 
of Commerce and Industry. 

He began his career with Teckwah in May 1979 as a 
Management Trainee. Thereafter he progressed through 
the rank and fi le in the organization to subsequently 
become Chairman and Managing Director of the 
Company.

Mr Chua obtained his Bachelor of Arts Degree from the 
Nanyang University in 1979.

Mr Ng Nai Ping
Age: 51
Executive Director 

Mr Ng was appointed Executive Director of the Board 
in February 1995 and re-elected to the Board on 28 
April 2004. He has served as a member of the audit 
committee since 1995 until December 2002 when he 
stepped down in compliance with Principle 11 of the 
Code of Corporate Governance. He is a member of 
the Share Options Scheme Committee. He began his 
career with the United Overseas Bank Group in 1980 
and stayed with the bank for 15 years covering trade 
banking, real estate fi nancing, corporate banking, and 
regional branch management portfolios. He joined the 
Company in February 1995 as the Corporate Planning 
and Finance Director. He is presently the Executive 
Director, taking care of the Group’s Finance, Infocomm 
Technology and the Non-Print Related Business which 
includes online distribution, 3rd party logistics, reverse 
logistics, and mission critical parts logistics management. 
Mr Ng graduated in 1980 from the Nanyang University 
with an Honours Degree in Business Management & 
Business Finance.

Ms Mai Ah Ngo
Age: 51
Executive Director 

Ms Mai was appointed Executive Director of the 
Board on 25 June 1993. She is currently in charge of 
Print Related Business. She began her career with the 
Company in 1982 as a Sales & Marketing Assistant 
Manager and was promoted to Production Planning 
Manager in 1985. She was transferred to Teckwah 
Printing to assume the post of Deputy Managing Director 
in 1988 and was promoted to Managing Director in 
1989. In 1990, she was re-assigned as Operations 
Director, responsible for the Group’s operations in 
Singapore. In 1993, her portfolio was increased to 
include overseeing the Group’s operations in Singapore, 
Malaysia, China and Indonesia. In 1998 and 1999, she 
was responsible for the Group Supply Chain business and 
Technology Licensing Program. These required regular 
travelling within the region to develop and identify 
potential licensee and setting up operations with the 
licensee in the Asia Pacifi c Region. Ms Mai graduated 
with a Bachelor of Arts Degree from the Nanyang 
University in 1977. She obtained her Executive MBA from 
the National University of Singapore in 1997.

Mr Peter Chan Pee Teck
Age: 46
Non Executive and Independent Director

Mr Chan was appointed a Non Executive and 
Independent Director on 12 September 1991. He is the 
Chairman of the Nominating Committee since 14 April 
1994, and is a member of the Audit Committee since 
March 2002. Mr Chan was re-elected to the Board on 28 
April 2005. Currently, he is the founder and Managing 
Partner of Crest Capital Partners Pte Ltd which manages 
a number of private equity funds across Asia. Prior to 
this, he was the Managing Partner of an ING sponsored 
direct investment fund from 1996 for 10 years. During 
1987 to 1995, he was with the Singapore offi ce of 
Advent International, a US-based venture capital fund 
that invested in general and technology business in 
South East Asia. Mr Chan graduated from the National 
University of Singapore in 1984 with a Bachelor Degree 
in Accountancy (Honours) and is a Fellow Member of 
both the Institute of Certifi ed Public Accountants in 
Singapore and Australia.
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Mr John Lim Hwee Chiang
Age: 50
Non Executive and Independent Director

Mr Lim was appointed a Non Executive and Independent 
Director on 17 February 1994. He is the Chairman of the 
Remuneration Committee and Share Options Scheme 
Committee since 20 March 2002, and is a member 
of the Audit Committee since 15 April 1994. He was 
re-elected to the Board on 28 April 2005. He began his 
career with DBS Land Ltd for the period between 1981 
to 1991where he was a Senior Manager. He joined 
SLF Mgt Services Pte Ltd as the General Manager for 
the period from 1991 to 1996. From 1997 to 2002 he 
joined GRA (Spore) Pte Ltd, a wholly owned subsidiary 
of Prudential USA, as Executive Director dealing in asset 
management (private equity funding). He presently is the 
Group CEO of ARA Asset Mgt Ltd (a member of Cheung 
Kong Holding), an asset management fi rm dealing both 
in Public and Private Equity funding. He is also a director 
of Interroller, Fortune REIT, Suntec REIT and Prosperity 
REIT.

Mr Lim graduated from the National University of 
Singapore with a Bachelor in Engineering (Honours) in 
May 1981. He also has a Master of Science as well as a 
Diploma in Business Administration from the National 
University of Singapore (1987). 

Mr Lim Lee Meng
Age: 50
Non Executive and Independent Director 

Mr Lim was appointed a Non Executive and Independent 
Director on 18 February 1994. He is the Chairman 
of the Audit Committee since 15 April 1994, and a 
member of the Share Options Scheme Committee and 
Remuneration Committee. Mr Lim was re-elected to 
the Board on 23 May 2003. He is also a director of 
Datapulse Technology Ltd, Tye Soon Ltd, Europtronic 
Group Ltd, ARA Asset Management (Singapore) Ltd and 
ARA Trust Management (Suntec) Limited. He is currently 
a senior partner of RSM Chio Lim, a member fi rm of 
RSM International. Mr Lim graduated from the Nanyang 
University with a Bachelor of Commerce (Accountancy) 
in May 1980. He also has a Master of Business 
Administration Degree from the University of Hull (1992), 
a Diploma in Business Law from the National University 
of Singapore (1989) and an ICSA qualifi cation from the 
Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators.

Mr Lee Chee Sit
Age: 46
Non Executive Director

Mr Lee was appointed a Non Executive Director since 
1991. He is a member of the Share Options Scheme 
Committee and was appointed a member of the 
Remuneration Committee on 28 April 2004. Mr Lee was 
re-elected to the Board on 28 April 2004. He succeeded 
the founder of Lian Thye & Co Pte Ltd and he is currently 
the Executive Director, responsible for the strategic 
planning and general management of the company. He 
has more than 18 years of experience in the toy industry.

Mr Tan Ee Chian 
Age: 34
Non Executive Director 

Mr  Tan  was  appointed  as a non-executive Director of 
the Company  on  11 August 2004. He began his career 
with Sheng Tai Toys Pte Ltd as a Marketing Executive 
in 1996. He left to join Bandai (HK) Co Ltd in 1997 as 
a Quality Control Engineer. In 1998, he returned to 
Sheng Tai Toys  Pte  Ltd  as  a  Product  Controller  and 
worked his way up to the current  role  as  Director.  
Mr  Tan  graduated  from the University of Southern  
California  in  1992  with  a  Bachelor  of  Science (Major 
in Marketing)”.



Executive Management

A Multicultural Company Serving Multinational Customers

14 Annual Report 2005 • TECKWAH INDUSTRIAL CORPORATION LTD
C 606240%80%M 75 6062 M75 60627540%80%C 606275TRAPPINGK40%80%YK Y

Group Top 
Management

Mr Thomas Chua Kee Seng, 
Age: 52

Chairman & Managing Director

Ms Mai Ah Ngo, 
Age: 51

Executive Director 

Mr Ng Nai Ping, 
Age: 51

Executive Director 

Mrs Angela Kok Teo Meng Kim, 
Age: 55

Director, Organisation Development 

and Corporate Communication

After having worked in multi-

national companies for more 

than 20 years, Mrs Kok made a 

career switch and joined Teckwah 

Group in February 1995 as its 

General Manager of Teckwah 

Paper Products Ltd. In 1998, she 

became the Director of the Group’s 

Printing and Packaging Business. 

From business operations, she 

moved over to the human aspect 

of the organsation and became the 

Director, Organisation Development 

and Corporate Communication in 

2001. Mrs Kok holds a Diploma in 

Rubber and Plastics Technology from 

Singapore Polytechnic, Bachelor 

Degree in Business Administration 

from Royal Melbourne Institute of 

Technology, and Master Degree 

in Business Administration from 

University of Strathclyde.

Group Senior 
Management

Mr James Chua Kee Hin,
Age: 44

Director / General Manager 

Teckwah Value Chain Pte Ltd 

Mr Chua is currently responsible 

for the Print Related Business in 

Singapore, Malaysia,  Indonesia 

and Thailand. He began his career 

with Teckwah in 1987 as a Sales 

& Marketing Executive. He was 

seconded to Malacca, Malaysia in 

1990 to start up Teckwah’s fi rst 

overseas’ subsidiary. Returning to 

Singapore in 1995, he took up the 

position of Project Manager and 

was responsible for new projects 

including Digital on-demand Printing. 

In 1997, his portfolio was expanded 

to include Sales & Marketing 

function and was re-designated to 

Sales and Marketing Manager. In 

1999, he was promoted to General 

Manager of Teckwah Printing & 

Packaging Pte Ltd. In 2001, he was 

appointed as Director / General 

Manager. Mr Chua holds a Bachelor 

of Science Degree in Business 

Administration from the Ohio State 

University, USA.

Mr William Lim Choon Huat
Age: 53

Regional Director, 

Business Operations 

Teckwah Logistics Pte Ltd

Mr Lim joined Teckwah on 15 March 

2006 to take charge of the business 

operations of Teckwah Logistics Pte 

Ltd in Singapore as well as in the 

region. 

He has more than 30 years of 

International Freight Forwarding and 

Logistics Management experience. 

Before joining Teckwah, during the 

last two years, he was imparting his 

knowledge and experience to the 

industry through lecturing in various 

universities and conducting training 

for corporations.

Mr Lim holds two Bachelor Degrees, 

one in Transport & Logistics 

Management from RMIT, Australia, 

and in Laws from University of 

Wolverhampton, England. He also 

holds a Master Degree in Business 

Administration from University of 

Leicester, England.

Mr Kew Kee Hing, 
Age: 42

Operations Director, 

Teckwah Logistics Pte Ltd

Mr Kew Kee Hing joined Teckwah 

in March 1999 as Operations 

Manager, responsible for the Value 

Chain operations. Currently he is 

the Operations Director of Teckwah 

Logistics Ptd Ltd. In addition to 

taking charge of the operations of 

Teckwah Logistics, he also actively 

supports the Group’s Solution 

Centre. He has many years of 

working experience in electronics 

manufacturing industry in Singapore. 

Mr Kew holds a Bachelor of Arts 

Degree from the National University 

of Malaysia.
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Ms Pang Hong Lan 
Age: 46

Director, InfoComm Technology & 

Solution Centre

Ms Pang joined Teckwah in 1999 as 

a Senior Manager (Special Projects) 

to support the development of the 

Group’s Value Chain business. She 

also led the expansion of Information 

and Communication infrastructure 

for the Group’s business in the Asia 

Pacifi c Region. She is currently the 

Director, InfoComm Technology 

and Solution Centre. Ms Pang 

holds a Bachelor of Science Degree 

in Production Engineering and 

Production Management from 

the University of Nottingham, UK, 

and Master of Science in Industrial 

Engineering from the National 

University of Singapore.

Ms Tan Peck Hoon, 
Age: 43

Director, Finance & Business 

Compliance

Ms Tan joined Teckwah in November 

2002 as Financial Controller. She 

was promoted to Director Finance in 

January 2006. At the same time she 

also took up new responsibilities as 

the Director, Business Compliance. 

She began her career as audit 

assistant. She progressed to work in 

multi- national companies covering 

areas in planning and analysis, 

fi nancial reporting and system 

implementation for the Asia Pacifi c 

Region. Ms Tan holds a Bachelor 

of Accountancy Degree from the 

National University of Singapore. 

She is a member of the Institute 

of Certifi ed Public Accountants of 

Singapore.

Mrs Sheryl Tan Chong Chai Nyuen
Age: 48

Group Human Resource Manager

Mrs Tan joined Teckwah as Group 

Human Resource Manager in 

June 2001. She is responsible 

for the Group’s Human Resource 

Management and Development. 

Before joining Teckwah, she worked 

in several multi-national corporations 

and local enterprises in the capacity 

of regional human resource manager 

and consultant. Mrs Tan holds a 

Bachelor of Arts Degree from the 

National University of Singapore.
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Financial Highlights
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By
Business
Segments 2002 % 2003 % 2004 % 2005      %

Print 99.2 96.8 115.5 95.0 137.6 93.8 161.7 88.9

Non Print 1.7 1.6 4.8 4.0 8.5 5.8 19.8 10.9

Services 1.6 1.6 1.2 1.0 0.6 0.4 0.3 0.2

Group Sales 102.5 100.0 121.5 100.0 146.7 100.0 181.8 100.0

By
Business
Segments 2002 % 2003 % 2004 % 2005      %

Print 6.4 83.7 3.8 66.6 7.7 93.1 9.4 111.4

Non Print 0.4 5.3 0.6 11.3 (1.4) (17.9) (0.6) (7.3)

Services 0.8 11.0 1.3 22.1 2.0 24.8 (0.3) (4.1)

Group Profi t before tax 7.7 100.0 5.7 100.0 8.3 100.0 8.5 100.0

Group Sales (S$ Million) Year ended Dec 31 2005

Group Profi t before tax  (S$ Million) Year ended Dec 31 2005

Key Financial and Productivity Data

Shareholders’ Funds  ($’000)
Cash & cash equivalents ($’000)
Total Assets  ($’000)
Total Debt  ($’000)
Net Tangible Assets ($’000)

Dividend per share (cents)
Earnings per share (cents)

Return on Equity (%)
Return on Turnover (%)
Return on Total Assets (%)
Debt to Equity (%)
Net Tangbile Assets per share (cents)

Average staff strength
Staff cost 
Staff cost per employee ($’000)

Sales
Sales per employee ($’000)

Profi t before Tax 
Profi t before Tax per employee ($’000)

Profi t attributable to Shareholders

Wt average no. of shares

No. of shares

2003

 74,025 
 8,341 

 139,273 
 25,438 
 73,352 

 0.60 
 2.32 

7.1%
4.3%
3.8%

34.4%
32.32

948
 18,933 

19.97

 121,517 
128.18

 5,711 
6.02

5,277

2,269.88

2,276.90

2004

  76,997 
 11,635 

 117,411 
 4,825 

 73,223 

1.00
 2.15 

6.3%
3.3%
4.2%
6.3%
32.11

1,085
 22,385 

20.63

 146,745 
135.25

 8,262 
7.61

4,888

2,278.49

2,280.02

2005

 81,245 
 22,588 

 134,612 
 5,228 

 71,520 

 1.00 
 2.31 

6.5%
2.9%
3.9%
6.4%
31.37

1,297
 29,415 

22.68

 181,764 
140.14

 8,464 
6.53

5,278

2,284.36

2,280.02

2002

70,519
12,438

121,161
26,344
70,448

1.00
2.78

8.9%
6.1%
5.2%

37.4%
31.19

912
17,365
19.05

 102,553 
112.45

 7,745 
8.49

6,283

2,260.28

2,260.30
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Business Contributions

By Geographical Segments 2002 % 2003 % 2004 % 2005 %

Singapore 71.9 70.1 84.3 69.4 98.6 67.2 113.6 62.5

People’s Republic of China 14.1 13.8 22.4 18.4 31.2 21.3 46.7 25.7

Indonesia 7.3 7.1 8.0 6.6 9.4 6.4 9.2 5.1

Malaysia 9.2 9.0 6.3 5.2 5.6 3.8 6.4 3.5

Thailand - - 0.5 0.4 1.4 1.0 1.0 0.6

Japan - - - - 0.5 0.3 1.2 0.7

Australia - - - - - - 3.7 2.0

Group Sales 102.5 100.0 121.5 100.0 146.7 100.0 181.8 100.0

Group Sales By Geographical Segments (S$ Million) Year ended Dec 31 2005

Revenue & Profi t Before Tax by Business Segments FY2005
Teckwah Group
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Teckwah Non Print Segment
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Corporate Information
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teckwah group®

Teckwah Industrial Corporation Ltd
25 Pandan Crescent #05-15 
TIC Tech Centre Singapore 128477
Tel : 65 6872 8181  
Fax : 65 6872 8199
Email : info@teckwah.com.sg
Contact Person : Ms Angela Kok, Director, 
  Corporate Communication

Teckwah China Corporation Pte Ltd
25 Pandan Crescent #05-15
TIC Tech Centre Singapore 128477
Tel : 65 6872 8181  
Fax : 65 6872 8199

teckwah print & pack®

Teckwah Value Chain Pte Ltd
25 Pandan Crescent #05-15 
TIC Tech Centre Singapore 128477
Tel : 65 6872 8181  
Fax : 65 6872 8229
Contact Person : Mr James Chua, 
  Director / General Manager

PT Teckwah Paper Products Indonesia
Batamindo Industrial Park
Jalan Beringin Lot 268-269 & 318
Mukakuning – Batam 29433 Indonesia
Tel : 62 770 612042, 612074
Fax : 62 770 612050
Contact Person : Mr James Chua, 
  Director / General Manager

Wuxi Teckwah Printing & 
Packaging Co., Ltd
Jiangsu Province, Wuxi City
Xishan District, 
E Hu Town (Dangkou)
People’s Republic of China 214116
Tel : 86 510 88746281   
  86 510 88741435
Fax : 86 510 88741377
Contact Person : Mr Ang Aik Pin, 
  General Manager 

teckwah logistics®

Teckwah Logistics Pte Ltd
25 Pandan Crescent #05-15 
TIC Tech Centre Singapore 128477
Tel : 65 6872 8181  
Fax : 65 6872 8229
Contact Person : Mr Kew Kee Hing, 
  Director, Operations

JNE Logistics Singapore Pte Ltd 
a member of Teckwah Logistics 
3 Upper Aljunied Link Block B 
#07-03 Joo Seng Warehouse 
Singapore 367902
Tel : 65 6282 0475 
Fax : 65 6282 0455 
Contact Person : Mr William Lim, 
  Regional Director, 
  Business Operations 

teckwah pharma®

Teckwah PharmaPack Solutions
a division of Teckwah Industrial 
Corporation Ltd
25 Pandan Crescent #05-15 
TIC Tech Centre Singapore 128477
Tel : 65 6872 8181  
Fax : 65 6872 8229
Contact Person : Mr James Chua, 
  Director / General Manager 

teckwah digital®

Teckwah Online Pte Ltd
25 Pandan Crescent #05-15
TIC Tech Centre Singapore 128477
Tel : 65 6872 6808
Fax : 65 6872 6820
Web : www.edenii.com
Contact Person : Mr Ng Nai Ping, 
  Executive Director

teckwah services®

TIC Capital Pte Ltd
25 Pandan Crescent #05-15 
TIC Tech Centre Singapore 128477
Tel : 65 6872 8181  
Fax : 65 6872 8199
Contact Person : Mr Ng Nai Ping, 
  Executive Director

teckwah value chain®

Techwave Media Services Pte Ltd
25 Pandan Crescent #05-15 
TIC Tech Centre Singapore 128477
Tel : 65 6872 8181  
Fax : 65 6872 8199
Contact Person : Ms Pang Hong Lan,   
  Director/General Manager

Teckwah Value Chain Sdn Bhd

Penang
Plot 468 & 482, Jalan Perusahaan Baru
Prai Industrial Estate
13600 Prai, Penang, Malaysia
Tel : 60 4 390 9181
Fax : 60 4 397 6181
Contact Person : Mr Ricky Tan, 
  Managing Director

Johor Bahru
8, Jalan Firma 2
Kawasan Perindustrian Tebrau I
81100 Johor Bahru, Malaysia 
Tel : 60 7 357 8181
Fax : 60 7 357 5508
Contact Person : Mr James Chua, 
  Director / General Manager

Teckwah Value Chain Korea Co Ltd
211-2 SongJeong-Dong KwangJu-Si
GyungGi-Do 464-806
Republic of Korea
Tel : 82 31 762 6188
Fax : 82 31 762 3988
Contact Person : Mr Steve Jin, 
  Managing Director  

Teckwah Contact List
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Teckwah Value Chain (Shanghai) Co Ltd
925 Ye Cheng Road Jia Ding
Shanghai 201821
People’s Republic of China 
Tel  : 86 21 5916 7580 
Fax :  86 21 5916 1566
Contact Person  : Mr Kevin Ow, 
  General Manager

Teckwah Packaging Systems 
(Shanghai) Co Ltd
500 Fu Te Dong Er Lu Warehouse 
27 Block A
Waigaoqiao Free Trade Zone 
Pudong Shanghai 200131
People’s Republic of China
Tel :  86 21 5046 0180 
Fax :  86 21 5046 1248
Contact Person  : Mr Kevin Ow, 
  General Manager 

Teckwah Packaging Systems 
(Shenzhen) Co Ltd
5th fl oor North Warehouse Haifu Building
Lanhua Path Jinhua Road Futian 
Free Trade Zone Futian District Shenzhen 
Guangdong Province 518038 
People’s Republic of China
Tel  : 86 755 8359 1577      
Fax : 86 755 8359 1573
Contact Person  :   Mr Kevin Ow, 
  General Manager 

Teckwah Packaging Systems 
(Suzhou) Co Ltd
5 Xinhan Street Block A #06-08 
Suzhou Industrial Park
Suzhou Jiangsu Province 215021
People’s Republic of China
Tel  :  86 512 6762 4988
Fax : 86 512 6762 4303
Contact Person  : Mr Kevin Ow, 
  General Manager

Teckwah Value Chain (Thailand) Co Ltd
10th Floor Unit B Thanapoom Tower
1550 New Petchburi Road
Makasan, Rajathevi
Bangkok 10400 Thailand
Tel  : 66 2 6526866
Fax : 66 2 6526855
Contact Person  :   Mr Khanchai Lapaviwat, 
  Country Manager 

Teckwah Industrial Corporation Ltd
Taiwan Branch 
152-156 6th Floor Lide Street 
Chungho City 235 
Taipei County, Taiwan ROC 
Tel  : 88 62 8221 4690
Fax : 88 62 8221 4687
Contact Person  : Ms Vivian Cheng, 
  Country Manager

Teckwah Value Chain (Japan) Co. Ltd 
143-0006
3-6-1 Heiwajima Ootaku Tokyo
A-1 Ridge of Tokyo Danchi Warehouse
Tel  :  81 3 (03) 5767 8686
Fax : 81 3 (03) 5763 3323
Contact Person  :  Mr Andy Nishihara 
  Managing Director

Teckwah Value Chain Pty Ltd 
ABN 35 115 902 380   ACN 115 902 380

91 Ashford Avenue PO Box 68
Milperra NSW 2214 Australia
Tel  :  612 8707 6200
Fax : 612 9774 1707
Contact Person  :  Mr Terry Jackson
  General Manager 
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Teckwah Group is committed to achieving and maintaining high standards of corporate governance by 
complying with the benchmark set by the Code of Corporate Governance (“the Code”) recently revised by 
the Council on Corporate Disclosure Governance Committee in 2005.   The Company continues to implement 
further practices to comply more fully with the recommendations of the Code.

While there will always be business risks, we believe these standards are the cornerstones in building a sound 
corporation and in protecting the interests of the shareholders.

Good corporate governance enables a company to be more transparent and forward looking. In addition it is an 
effective safeguard against fraud and dubious fi nancial engineering.

Teckwah upholds the principle that all involved in governance and managing the Group and its subsidiaries 
must act with high standards of ethics, integrity and transparency.  

This report outlines the Company’s corporate governance processes and structures that are in place. Given 
the Group’s size and stage of development, we believe the overall corporate governance we have in place is 
appropriate and complies with the requirements of the Code of Corporate Governance.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Principle 1: Board’s Conduct of its Affairs

The Board and the committees, formed to assist the Board in the execution of its responsibilities, meet at least 
once in every quarter or as convened when necessary. 

In the year under review,  the number of board meetings and committee meetings held and attended by each 
member are as follows:

Name of Directors Board 
Meeting

Audit 
Committee

Nominating 
Committee

Remuneration 
Committee

No. of 
meetings

No. of 
meetings

Attendance
No. of 

meetings

No. of 
meetings

Attendance
No. of 

meetings

No. of 
meetings

Attendance
No. of 

meetings

No. of 
meetings

Attendance

Chua Kee Seng Thomas 4 4 - - - - 1 1

Ng Nai Ping 4 4 - - - - - -

Mai Ah Ngo 4 3 - - - - - -

Lee Chee Sit 4 4 - - 1 1 - -

Chan Pee Teck Peter 4 4 3 3 - - 1 1

Lim Lee Meng 4 4 3 3 1 1 - -

Lim Hwee Chiang John 4 3 3 3 1 1 1 1

Tan Ee Chian 4 4 - - - - - -
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The Board is responsible for:

(1) Formulating and approving the broad policies, strategies and fi nancial objectives of the Group and 
monitoring its performance;

(2) Approving annual budgets, major funding proposals, investment and divestment proposals;
(3) Overseeing the processes for evaluating the adequacy of internal controls and risk management;
(4) Approving the nominations of board directors;
(5) Assuming the responsibility for corporate governance and compliances with the Companies Act and rules 

and requirements of regulatory bodies.

Matters, which are specifi cally reserved to the Board for decision, are those involving material acquisitions and 
disposal of assets, corporate or fi nancial restructuring and share issuances and dividends. 

The Board has established a number of committees namely the Nominating, Audit, Remuneration and Share 
Option Scheme Committees to assist in the execution of responsibilities more effectively. These committees 
function within clearly defi ned terms of reference and operating procedures.

New directors are given a formal letter explaining his duties and obligations as a director.  Newly-appointed 
directors are briefed on the Group’s business and Corporate Governance policies. Familiarization visits are 
organized, if necessary, to facilitate a better understanding of the Group’s operations.

The Board has no dissenting views on the Chairman’s statement for the year in review.

Principle 2: Board Composition and Balance

The Board consists of 8 directors out of which three are executive directors, three non-executive and 
independent directors, and two non-executive directors. 

The Chairman of the Board is Mr Thomas Chua Kee Seng (executive director). The three non-executive and 
independent directors are Mr Peter Chan Pee Teck, Mr John Lim Hwee Chiang and Mr Lim Lee Meng.

The composition of the Board and independence of each director is reviewed annually by the Nominating 
Committee.

The Nominating Committee is of the view that the current Board size of eight directors is appropriate taking 
into account the nature and scope of the Group’s operations, and, the depth and breadth of knowledge, 
expertise and business experiences of the directors to govern and manage the Group’s affairs.

Principle 3: Role of Chairman and Chief Executive Offi cer (“CEO”)

Mr Thomas Chua is currently the Chairman of the Board and the Managing Director of the Company. The 
Board has not adopted the recommendation of the Code to have separate directors appointed as the Chairman 
and Managing Director. This is because the Board is of the view that there is already a suffi ciently strong 
independent element on the Board to enable independent exercise of objective judgment of corporate affairs of 
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the Company by members of the Board, taking into account factors such as the number of non-executive and 
independent directors on the Board, as well as the size and scope of its affairs.  To enhance the independence 
of the Board, a lead independent director has been appointed to be available to shareholders where they have 
concerns which contact through normal channels has failed to resolve.

As the Chairman, Mr Thomas Chua is responsible for exercising control over quality, quantity and timeliness of 
the fl ow of information between the management of the Company and the Board, and in ensuring compliance 
with the guidelines on Corporate Governance.

BOARD COMMITTEES

Nominating Committee

Principle 4: Board Membership
Principle 5: Board Performance

The Nominating Committee (“NC”) comprises two non-executive and independent directors, and one executive 
director. The Chairman of the NC is Mr Peter Chan Pee Teck, who has no direct relationship with any of the 
substantial shareholders of the Company. The other members are Mr Thomas Chua and Mr John Lim Hwee 
Chiang.

The NC’s role is to establish an objective and transparent process for: 

1) the appointment or re-appointment of members of the Board and of all Board committees;
2) evaluating and assessing the effectiveness of the Board as a whole, and the contribution by each 

individual director to the effectiveness of the Board. The NC has considered a number of factors including 
those set out in the Code of Corporate Governance, for the purpose of such evaluation and assessment;

3) determining the independence of directors.

In Feb 2006, the Board approved the adoption of a formal process for the selection and appointment of new 
directors, as set out below: 

1) Search Process
 • Identify the criterias that the prospective candidates should possess:age group, sex, qualifi cations, 

experience, personal attributes and skills.
 • Source from recommendations of fellow Board members, business associates or trade organizations.

2) Selection Process
 • After an initial assessment of the CVs, a verifi cation check is conducted through various contacts such 

as friends, bankers, business associates, etc.
 • Formal interview of short-listed candidates to assess suitability and ensure that they are aware of 

expectations and level of commitment required.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
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3) Nomination Process
 • Recommend to the Board the nomination of successful candidates.

4) Appointment Process
 • Based on the recommendations by the NC, the Board approves the appointment via a resolution.
 • Board to approve any other appointments to sub-committees, if appropriate.
 • Issue letter of appointment setting out terms and conditions of appointment such as period of offi ce, 

compensation & benefi ts, duties & responsibilities and termination.

New directors who are appointed by way of a board resolution after the NC has approved their nomination, 
shall submit themselves for re-election at the next Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) of the Company. Article 
100 of the Company’s Articles of Association requires one third of the Board to retire by rotation at every AGM, 
except that the Managing Director is not subject to retirement by rotation.

Audit Committee

Principle 11: Audit Committee
Principle 12: Internal Controls

The Audit Committee comprises three non-executive and independent directors. These directors have the 
appropriate accounting or related fi nancial management expertise or experience to discharge the Audit 
Committee’s functions. Mr Lim Lee Meng, who is a partner in an accounting fi rm, chairs the Audit Committee. 
The other members are Mr Peter Chan Pee Teck and Mr John Lim Hwee Chiang.

The Audit Committee performs the following functions: 
   
1) recommends to the Board of Directors the external auditors to be nominated;
2) reviews the scope, audit plans, results and effectiveness of the external and internal auditors;
3) reviews any related signifi cant fi ndings and recommendations of the external and internal auditors 

together with the management’s responses thereto;
4) reviews the adequacy of the Group’s system of accounting controls, fi nancial and management reporting 

systems;
5) reviews signifi cant risks or exposures with the management and the external and internal auditors and 

assesses the steps management has taken to minimize such risks to the Group;
6) reviews with the management, internal and external auditors the announcements of the interim and full 

year results of the Group and its fi nancial statements;
7) reviews interested party transactions as may be required by regulatory authorities or the provisions of the 

Companies Act;
8) reviews legal and regulatory matters that may have a material impact on the fi nancial statements;
9) reports actions and minutes of the Audit Committee to the Board of Directors with such 

recommendations, as the Audit Committee considers appropriate.

The Audit Committee is empowered to investigate any matter within its terms of reference, and has full access 
to, and the co-operation of the Management with full discretion to invite any director or executive offi cer to 
attend its meetings.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
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The Audit Committee reviewed the fi ndings of the auditors and the assistance given to them by management. 
Minutes of the Audit Committee meetings are regularly submitted to the Board for its information and review.

The Company’s external auditors Deloitte &Touche, carry out in the course of their statutory audit, a review of 
the effectiveness of the Company’s material internal controls, including fi nancial, operational and compliance 
controls. Material non-compliance and internal control weaknesses noted during their audit are reported to the 
Audit Committee together with their recommendations. 

The Audit Committee has reviewed the Group’s risk assessment, and based on the audit reports and 
management controls in place, is satisfi ed that there are adequate internal controls in the Group.

The Audit Committee confi rms that it has undertaken a review of all non-audit services provided by the 
external auditors and is satisfi ed that such services would not, in the Audit Committee’s opinion, affect the 
independence of the auditors.

The Audit Committee has recommended to the Board the nomination of Deloitte & Touche for re-appointment 
as external auditors of the Company at the forthcoming AGM.

Remuneration Committee
Share Option Scheme Committee (“the Scheme”)

Principle 7:  Procedures for Developing Remuneration Policies
Principle 8:  Level and Mix of Remuneration
Principle 9: Disclosure on Remuneration

The Remuneration Committee comprises three directors, of whom a majority are non-executive and independent 
directors. The Remuneration Committee is chaired by Mr John Lim Hwee Chiang. The other members are Mr 
Lim Lee Meng and Mr Lee Chee Sit.

The Remuneration Committee has access to expert professional advice on human resource matters whenever 
there is a need to consult externally. In its deliberations, the Remuneration Committee takes into consideration 
industry practices and norms in compensation.
.
The Remuneration Committee’s principal responsibilities are to:

1) review periodically and recommend to the Board an appropriate framework of compensation practices to 
attract, retain and motivate management staff of the required caliber to manage the Group successfully.

2) review and recommend the CEO’s remuneration and those of the executive directors whose remuneration 
packages include a variable bonus component which is performance-related, and also stock options 
which have been designed to align their interests with those of the shareholders;

3) review the recommendation of the executive directors, for approval of the Board, the fees of the non-
executive directors and such payment as may be payable pursuant to Article 89 of the Company’s Articles 
of Association;

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
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The executive directors’ remuneration packages are based on the performance of the Group and the individual. 
The Chairman & Managing Director is currently on a 3-year renewable service Agreement that commenced on 
2nd March 1994. The terms and conditions are reviewed by the Remuneration Committee and approved by the 
Board.

Non-executive directors have no service contracts and are paid a basic fee and additional fees for attendance 
at and service on Board Committees’ meetings. Directors’ Fees are subjected to approval by shareholders  at 
the AGM of the Company. A breakdown, showing the level and mix of each individual director’s remuneration 
payable for FY 2005 is as follows:

 Remuneration   Directors’
 Band $ Salary % Bonus % Fee % Total %
Executive Directors
Chua Kee Seng Thomas 500,000 to 749,999 55 44 1 100
Mai Ah Ngo 250,000 to 499,999 73 25 2 100
Ng Nai Ping 250,000 to 499,999 72 26 2 100

Non Executive Directors 
Lim Lee Meng 0 to 249,999 - - 100 100
Chan Pee Teck Peter 0 to 249,999 - - 100 100
Lim Hwee Chiang John  0 to 249,999  - - 100 100
Lee Chee Sit  0 to 249,999  - - 100 100
Tan Ee Chian  0 to 249,999  - - 100 100

Notes:
Salary    The salary shown is inclusive of benefi ts in kind, allowances and employers CPF
Bonus    The bonus amount shown is inclusive of employers CPF
Director’s Fees  Self Explanatory

The Share Option Scheme Committee administers the Teckwah Employees’ Share Option Scheme. The scheme 
was approved by the shareholders at the Extraordinary General Meeting held on 12 September 2001.

The Share Option Scheme Committee comprises the following directors:

Chairman: Mr Lim Hwee Chiang John (Non-Executive and Independent Director)
Members: Mr Lim Lee Meng (Non-Executive and Independent Director)
   Mr Lee Chee  Sit ( Non-Executive  Director)
   Mr Chua Kee Seng Thomas (Chairman & Managing Director)
   Mr Ng Nai Ping (Executive Director)

The functions of the Committee are to administer the Scheme and to deliberate on the matters on eligibility 
of the employees of the company and its subsidiaries as well as the number of options to be granted to each 
participant, in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Scheme.

Details of the Scheme are found in the Directors’ Report.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
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The information required for the annual remuneration report is provided herein and in the Directors’ Report. 

Disclosure of the top fi ve executives’ remuneration (executives who are not directors) in bands of S$250,000/- is 
as follows:

Number of Executive within the Group in Remuneration Bands FY2005

Between $500,000 to $749,999 1
Between $247,999 to $499,999 1
Between $0 to $249,999 6

One employee, whose remuneration exceeds $150,000 during the year, is related to the Chairman & Managing 
Director.

Principle 6: Access to Information

In order to ensure that the Board is able to fulfi ll its responsibilities, the Management provides the Board with 
quarterly management accounts. In addition, all relevant information on material events and transactions are 
circulated to directors as and when they arise. Wherever necessary, senior management staff will be invited to 
attend the Board meetings to answer queries and provide detailed insights into their areas of operations.

The directors have been provided with the phone numbers and email particulars of the Company’s senior 
management and Company Secretary to facilitate access.

The directors are kept well-informed by the Chairman & Managing Director on the status of on-going activities 
between meetings. Where a decision has to be made before a Board meeting, a circulating directors’ resolution 
is done in accordance with the Articles of Association of the Company and the directors are provided with all 
necessary information to enable them to make informed decisions. The Company Secretary will also ensure that 
any queries made by the directors will be answered promptly by the Management. Where the directors, either 
individually or as a group, in the furtherance of their duties, require professional advice, the Company Secretary 
can be approached to assist them to obtain independent professional advice, at the Company’s expense. Board 
members have separate and independent access to the Company Secretary at all times.

Principle 13: Internal Audit

The Board supports the need and is responsible for maintaining a system of internal controls and processes 
to safeguard shareholders’ investments and the Group’s assets. The Audit Committee is tasked to oversee 
the implementation of an effective system of internal controls as well as putting in place a risk management 
framework to continually identify, evaluate and manage signifi cant business risks of the Group. The Audit 
Committee has the mandate to authorize special reviews or investigations, where appropriate, in discharging its 
responsibilities.

The internal audit function is outsourced to PricewaterhouseCoopers who reports directly to the Audit 
Committee. The internal auditors support the Audit Committee in their role to assess the effectiveness of the 
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Group’s overall system of operational and fi nancial controls as well as assist in the implementation of a risk 
management framework. The Audit Committee reviews and approves the annual internal audit plan proposed 
by the internal auditors. Material non-compliance and internal control weaknesses noted during the internal 
audits are reported together with the internal auditors’ recommendations to the Audit Committee periodically.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

Principle 10: Accountability and Audit
Principle 14: Communication with Shareholders
Principle 15: Greater Shareholder Participation

The Company does not practice selective disclosure. Price sensitive announcements including interim and 
full year results are released through SGXNET and subsequently posted on the Company’s website. The 
Company’s Corporate Communication Department manages investor’s relations and attends to their queries. 
All shareholders of the Company receive the Annual Report and notice of AGM which can be assessed from 
the Company’s website. At AGMs, shareholders are given the opportunity to air their views and ask questions 
regarding the Group and its business.

The Articles of Association of the Company allow a member of the Company to appoint one or two proxies to 
attend and vote instead of the member.

INTERESTED PERSON TRANSACTIONS

Since the end of the previous fi nancial period, the Company and its subsidiaries did not enter into any material 
contract involving the interest of the directors or controlling shareholders and no such material contract still 
subsist at the end of the fi nancial year.

CODE OF BUSINESS ETHICS

The Group has in place a Code of Business Ethics which employees are required to observe for the purpose of 
maintaining high standards of integrity and business conduct. This Code clearly defi nes the process through 
which employees, in confi dence, report possible improprieties in matter of fi nancial reporting or other matters 
to the Audit Committee for follow up action.

DEALINGS IN SECURITIES

In line with SGX’s Best Practices Guide, the Group offi cers are not allowed to deal in the Company’s shares 
while in possession of price sensitive information, and during the period commencing one month before the 
announcement of the Company’s results and ending on the date of the announcement of the results.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

The directors present their report together with the audited consolidated fi nancial statements of the group and 
balance sheet and statement of changes in equity of the company for the fi nancial year ended December 31, 
2005.

1 DIRECTORS

 The directors of the company in offi ce at the date of this report are:

 Mr. Chua Kee Seng Thomas
 Mr. Ng Nai Ping
 Mdm. Mai Ah Ngo
 Mr. Lee Chee Sit*
 Mr. Chan Pee Teck Peter*
 Mr. Lim Hwee Chiang John*
 Mr. Lim Lee Meng*
 Mr. Tan Ee Chian* 

 *Non-executive directors

2 ARRANGEMENTS TO ENABLE DIRECTORS TO ACQUIRE BENEFITS
 BY MEANS OF THE ACQUISITION OF SHARES AND DEBENTURES

 Neither at the end of the fi nancial year nor at any time during the fi nancial year did there subsist any 
arrangement whose object is to enable the directors of the company to acquire benefi ts by means of the 
acquisition of shares or debentures in the company or any other body corporate except as disclosed in 
paragraph 3 of the Report of the Directors.

3 DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES AND DEBENTURES

 The directors of the company holding offi ce at the end of the fi nancial year had no interests in the 
share capital and debentures of the company and its related corporations as recorded in the register of 
directors’ shareholdings kept by the company under Section 164 of the Singapore Companies Act except 
as follows:

Shareholdings Shareholdings in which
     registered in the directors are deemed to
     name of directors have an interest      
     At At At At
     January 1, December 31, January 1, December 31,
        2005 2005 2005 2005
 The company
 Ordinary shares of $0.10 each

 Mr. Chua Kee Seng Thomas 500,000 500,000 794,000  794,000
 Mr. Lee Chee Sit -   -   32,216,900 32,216,900
 Mdm. Mai Ah Ngo 12,000 12,000 794,000   794,000
 Mr. Tan Ee Chian -  -    29,924,900 29,924,900
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3 DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES AND DEBENTURES (cont’d)

Shareholdings Shareholdings in which
     registered in the directors are deemed to
     name of directors have an interest      
     At At At At
     January 1, December 31, January 1, December 31,
        2005 2005 2005 2005
 Options granted to subscribe for
 ordinary shares of $0.10 each under
 the Employees’ Share Option Scheme

 (a) Subscription price at $0.155

  Exercise period: October 30, 2002 to October 30, 2006

  Mr. Chua Kee Seng Thomas 800,000 800,000 -         -        
  Mdm. Mai Ah Ngo 480,000 480,000 -         -        
  Mr. Ng Nai Ping 480,000 480,000 -         -        
  Mr. Lim Lee Meng 224,000 224,000 -         -        
  Mr. Lim Hwee Chiang John 224,000 224,000 -         -        
  Mr. Chan Pee Teck Peter 224,000 224,000 -         -        

 (b) Subscription price at $0.185

  Exercise period: April 13, 2004 to April 13, 2008

  Mr. Chua Kee Seng Thomas 500,000 500,000 -         -        
  Mdm. Mai Ah Ngo 300,000 300,000 -         -        
  Mr. Ng Nai Ping 300,000 300,000 -         -        
  Mr. Lim Lee Meng 140,000 140,000 -         -        
  Mr. Lim Hwee Chiang John 140,000 140,000 -         -        
  Mr. Chan Pee Teck Peter 140,000 140,000 -         -        

 The directors’ interests in the shares of the company remain unchanged as at January 21, 2006, except 
that the shareholdings in which Mr Chua Kee Seng Thomas and Mdm Mai Ah Ngo were deemed to have 
an interest increased to 936,000 shares as at January 21, 2006.

4 DIRECTORS’ RECEIPT AND ENTITLEMENT TO CONTRACTUAL BENEFITS

 Since the beginning of the fi nancial year, no director has received or become entitled to receive a benefi t 
which is required to be disclosed under Section 201(8) of the Singapore Companies Act, by reason of a 
contract made by the company or a related corporation with the director or with a fi rm of which he is 
a member, or with a company in which he has a substantial fi nancial interest except as disclosed in the 
fi nancial statements.

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
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5 SHARE OPTIONS 

a) Options to take up unissued shares

   The Teckwah Employees’ Share Option Scheme (“Share Option Scheme”) was approved by the 
shareholders at the extraordinary General Meeting held on September 12, 2001.  The Share 
Option Scheme is administered by a committee of directors comprising:

 Chairman : Mr. Lim Hwee Chiang John (Independent Director)
 Members : Mr. Chua Kee Seng Thomas (Chairman and Managing Director)
   Mr. Ng Nai Ping (Executive Director)
   Mr. Lee Chee Sit (Non-Executive Director)
   Mr. Lim Lee Meng (Independent Director)

 Under the Share Option Scheme, an option entitles the option holder to subscribe for a specifi c 
number of new ordinary shares of $0.10 each in the company comprised in the option.  The 
exercise price shall be determined by the Share Option Scheme Committee at its absolute 
discretion and fi xed by the Committee as the price equal to the average of the last dealt price for 
the company’s share, as determined by reference to the Offi cial List published by the Singapore 
Exchange Securities Trading Limited (“SGX-ST”), for the last fi ve market days immediately 
preceding the offering date of the option.  In no event shall the exercise price be less than the 
nominal value of the share of the company.

 The consideration for the grant of an option is $1.00.  Options granted shall be exercisable during 
the relevant option period commencing after the fi rst anniversary but before the fi fth anniversary 
of the date of the grant.  Options granted will lapse when the option holder ceases to be a full-
time employee of the company or any company within the group subject to certain exceptions at 
the discretion of the board of directors.

   
 b)  Unissued shares under option and options exercised

   The number of shares under the Share Option Scheme shall not exceed 15% of the issued share 
capital of the company. The number of outstanding share options under the scheme are as 
follows:

   
Number of share options

 Balance as    Balance as Exercise 
 at January    at December price Exercisable
Date of grant 1, 2005 Granted Exercised Cancelled 31, 2005 per share period    

  November 1, 2001 3,482,000 - - 96,000 3,386,000 0.155 October 30, 2002 to 
        October 30, 2006
 April 14, 2003 3,064,000 - - 120,000 2,944,000 0.185 April 13, 2004 to
        April 13, 2008

  6,546,000 -   -      216,000 6,330,000

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
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5 SHARE OPTIONS (cont’d)

 i) Aggregate options granted to directors under the Share Option Scheme since the commencement 
of the Scheme were as follow:

 Options Options granted  Options
  granted since commencement  outstanding
  during the of Scheme to end of Exercised/ as at December
 Name fi nancial year   previous fi nancial year Expired    31, 2005

   Mr. Chua Kee Seng Thomas -      1,300,000 -      1,300,000
   Mdm. Mai Ah Ngo -      780,000 -      780,000
   Mr. Ng Nai Ping -      780,000 -      780,000
   Mr. Lim Lee Meng -      364,000 -      364,000
   Mr. Lim Hwee Chiang John -      364,000 -      364,000
   Mr. Chan Pee Teck Peter -      364,000 -      364,000

   No options were granted to controlling shareholders of the company and their associates under 
the Share Option Scheme since the commencement of the Scheme.

ii) During the fi nancial year, no employee received 5% or more of the total number of options, 
available under the Share Option Scheme and no shares were issued at a discount to market price.

iii) During the fi nancial year, no options to take up unissued shares of any subsidiary were granted 
and there were no shares of any subsidiary issued by virtue of the exercise of an option to take up 
unissued shares.

iv) At the end of the fi nancial year, there were no unissued shares of any subsidiary under option.

6 AUDIT COMMITTEE

 The directors of Teckwah Industrial Corporation Ltd have adopted the principles of the Code of Corporate 
Governance as formulated by Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited with respect to Audit 
Committees.

 The Audit Committee comprises the following independent directors:

 Chairman : Mr. Lim Lee Meng
 Members : Mr. Lim Hwee Chiang John
   Mr. Chan Pee Teck Peter

 The Audit Committee performed the functions set out in the Singapore Companies Act.

 For the fi nancial year ended December 31, 2005, the Audit Committee held 3 meetings and reviewed 
the following:

i) the audit plans and results of the external auditors’ examination of the fi nancial statements;

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
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6 AUDIT COMMITTEE (cont’d)

ii) the audit plans and results of out-sourced audits of internal controls and operations and evaluation 
of the group’s systems of internal accounting controls; 

iii) the group’s fi nancial and operating results and accounting policies;

iv) the announcements on the results and fi nancial position of the company and the group;

v) the fi nancial statements of the company, the consolidated fi nancial statements of the group and 
the external auditors’ report on those fi nancial statements before their submission to the directors 
of the company;

vi) the co-operation and assistance given by the management to the auditors;

vii) the re-appointment of the auditors of the company; and

viii) interested person transactions.

 The Audit Committee had full access to the auditors.  The Audit Committee also received co-operation 
from management and has been given the resources required for it to discharge its functions properly.

 The Audit Committee has recommended to the Board of Directors the nomination of Deloitte & Touche 
as auditors of the company at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

7 AUDITORS

 The auditors, Deloitte & Touche, have expressed their willingness to accept re-appointment.

ON BEHALF OF THE DIRECTORS

................................................
Chua Kee Seng Thomas

................................................
Ng Nai Ping

March 20, 2006

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
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We have audited the consolidated fi nancial statements of the group and the balance sheet and statement 
of changes in equity of Teckwah Industrial Corporation Ltd for the fi nancial year ended December 31, 2005 
set out on pages 36 to 85.  These fi nancial statements are the responsibility of the company’s directors.  Our 
responsibility is to express an opinion on these fi nancial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Singapore Standards on Auditing.  Those Standards require that 
we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the fi nancial statements are free 
of material misstatement.  An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and 
disclosures in the fi nancial statements.  An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and 
signifi cant estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall fi nancial statements presentation. 
We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion,

(a) the consolidated fi nancial statements of the group and the balance sheet and statement of changes 
in equity of the company are properly drawn up in accordance with the provisions of the Singapore 
Companies Act, Cap. 50 (the “Act”) and Singapore Financial Reporting Standards so as to give a true 
and fair view of the state of affairs of the group and of the company as at December 31, 2005 and of 
the results, changes in equity and cash fl ows of the group and changes in equity of the company for the 
fi nancial year ended on that date; and

(b) the accounting and other records required by the Act to be kept by the company and by those 
subsidiaries incorporated in Singapore of which we are the auditors have been properly kept in 
accordance with the provisions of the Act.

DELOITTE & TOUCHE
Certifi ed Public Accountants
Singapore 

Wong-Yeo Siew Eng
Partner
Appointed on September 3, 2002

March 20, 2006

AUDITORS’ REPORT
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 GROUP COMPANY
  Note 2005 2004 2005 2004
   $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

ASSETS

Current assets:
Cash and bank balances 5 22,588 11,635 584 657
Trade receivables 6 46,472 34,150 21,437 20,433
Other receivables and prepayments 7 3,254 2,892 9,966 7,842
Inventories 8   19,413   19,885     -          -     
Total current assets    91,727   68,562 31,987 28,932

Non-current assets:
Funds under management 9 -      10,054 -      10,054
Associates 10 382 1,236 -      -     
Joint venture 11 -      -      4,216 4,216
Subsidiaries 12 -      -      18,952 25,045
Property, plant and equipment 13 32,778 34,248 1,050 1,323
Intangible assets 14 1,471 181 171 181
Goodwill 15    8,254     3,130     -          -     
Total non-current assets    42,885   48,849 24,389 40,819

Total assets  134,612 117,411 56,376 69,751

BALANCE SHEETS
December 31, 2005
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 GROUP COMPANY
  Note 2005 2004 2005 2004
   $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

Current liabilities:
Bank loans and overdrafts 16 797 2,058 -      -     
Trade payables 17 29,828 22,184 302 373
Other payables 18 13,306 5,562 6,586 8,032
Income tax payable  2,665 5,322 246 3,105
Current portion of fi nance leases 19 451 1,023 4 86
Current portion of long-term bank loans 20    1,255        234     -          -     
Total current liabilities    48,302   36,383   7,138 11,596

Non-current liabilities:
Finance leases 19 328 757 -      4
Long-term bank loans 20 2,397 753 -      -     
Deferred tax liabilities 21    2,042     1,800       57       57
Total non-current liabilities     4,767     3,310       57       61

Capital, reserves and minority
   interests:
Share capital 22 22,800 22,800 22,800 22,800
Share premium  115 115 115 115
Retained earnings  57,968 54,514 26,266 35,173
Currency translation reserve         362     (432)     -              6
Attributable to equity holders of
   the company   81,245   76,997 49,181 58,094
Minority interests         298      721     -          -     
Total equity    81,543 77,718 49,181 58,094

Total liabilities and equity  134,612 117,411 56,376 69,751

BALANCE SHEETS
December 31, 2005

See accompanying notes to fi nancial statements.
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 GROUP
  Note 2005 2004
   $’000 $’000

Revenue 23 181,764 146,745

Other operating income 24 2,784 4,287

Changes in inventories of fi nished goods and work in progress  338 2,180

Raw materials and consumables used  (104,473) (87,591)

Employee benefi ts expense 25 (29,415) (22,385)

Depreciation and amortisation expense  (6,299) (6,548)

Other operating expenses  (35,561)  (27,330)

Finance costs 26 (391)      (793)

Share of loss of associates      (283)      (303)

Profi t before tax 27 8,464 8,262

Income tax expense 28  (2,500)   (3,223)

Profi t for the year    5,964    5,039

Attributable to :

Equity holders of the company  5,278 4,888

Minority interests       686       151

     5,964   5,039

Earnings per share of $0.10 each 30

Basic    2.31 cents 2.15 cents

Diluted  2.31 cents 2.13 cents

CONSOLIDATED PROFIT AND LOSS STATEMENT
Financial year ended December 31, 2005

See accompanying notes to fi nancial statements.
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           Attributable
           to equity
          Currency holders 
      Share Share Retained Reserve on translation of the Minority
     Note capital premium earnings consolidation reserve  company interest Total
      $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

Group

Balance at December 31, 2003  22,769 94 50,576 144 442 74,025 90 74,115

Transfers  -      -   144 (144) -     -      -     -     

Currency translation differences  -      -   -      - (874) (874) -     (874)

Minority interest arising

 from new subsidiaries  -      -   -      - -     -      480 480

Net profi t for the year  -      -   4,888 - -     4,888 151 5,039

Dividends paid 29 -      -   (1,094) - -     (1,094) -     (1,094)

Issue of shares 22        31   21     -      -    -           52 -     52

Balance at December 31, 2004  22,800 115 54,514 -   (432) 76,997 721 77,718

Currency translation differences  -      -   -      - 794 794 -     794

Acquisition of equity interest

 from minority interest  -      -   -      - -     -      (1,109) (1,109)

Net profi t for the year  -      -   5,278 - - 5,278 686 5,964

Dividends paid 29     -      -   (1,824) - - (1,824) -     (1,824)

Balance at December 31, 2005  22,800 115 57,968 - 362 81,245 298 81,543

STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
Financial year ended December 31, 2005

See accompanying notes to fi nancial statements.
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         Currency 
      Share Share Retained translation 
     Note capital premium earnings reserve Total
      $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

Company

Balance at December 31, 2003  22,769 94 35,980  2  58,845

Net profi t for the year  -      -   287     -  287

Currency translation difference  -      -   -     4 4

Dividends paid 29 -      -   (1,094) -  (1,094)

Issue of shares 22       31   21     -    -        52

Balance at December 31, 2004  22,800 115 35,173  6  58,094

Net loss for the year  -      -   (7,083)    - (7,083)

Currency translation difference  -      -   -        (6) (6)

Dividends paid 29     -        -   (1,824)  -   (1,824)

Balance at December 31, 2005  22,800 115 26,266 - 49,181

STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
Financial year ended December 31, 2005

See accompanying notes to fi nancial statements.
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    2005 2004
   $’000 $’000
Operating activities:
 Profi t before tax  8,464 8,262
 Adjustments for:
  Share of loss of associates 283 303
  Impairment loss on:
     Other assets -      12
     Property, plant and equipment -      142
     Associate 571 -     
  Depreciation and amortisation expense  6,299 6,559
  Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment (298) (3,969)
  Gain on disposal of quoted equity shares (1,065) -     
  Gain on liquidation of funds under management (835) -     
  Interest income (389) (184)
  Finance cost      391      793
 Operating cash fl ows before movements in working capital  13,421 11,918

  Trade receivables (12,322) (1,258)
  Other receivables and prepayments (362) (1,501)
  Inventories 1,022 (3,686)
  Trade payables 7,644 (6,961)
  Other payables    6,444  (1,570)
 Cash generated from (used in) operations 15,847 (3,058)

 Interest paid (391) (793)
 Income tax paid  (4,915)  (1,648)
Net cash from (used in) operating activities 10,541  (5,499)

Investing activities:
 Interest received 389 184
 Proceeds from disposal of quoted equity shares 3,065 -     
 Purchase of quoted equity shares (2,000)  -     
 Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment 737 49,212
 Purchase of property, plant and equipment (4,268) (7,190)
 Funds under management 10,889 (10,054)
 Acquisition of business (Note B) (4,277) -     
 Acquisition of equity interest from minority shareholder (Note C) (1,620) -     
 Additional purchase consideration of a subsidiary (Note D) (1,143) -     
 Acquisition of new subsidiary, net of cash (Note E) -      (1,873)
 Dividend from associate    -            87
Net cash from investing activities     1,772 30,366

CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
Financial year ended December 31, 2005

See accompanying notes to fi nancial statements.
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    2005 2004
   $’000 $’000
Financing activities:
 Proceeds from issue of shares - 52
 Dividends paid (1,824) (1,094)
 Repayments of bank loans (2,019) (1,957)
 Repayments of long-term loans (662) (20,707)
 Repayments of obligations under fi nance leases (1,001) (455)
 New bank loans raised 4,098 3,051
Net cash used in fi nancing activities  (1,408) (21,110)

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 10,905 3,757
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 11,621   7,782
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes 61       82

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year (Note A) 22,587 11,621

Notes:

A) Cash and cash equivalents consist of:
    2005 2004
   $’000 $’000

 Cash at bank 11,603 10,410
 Fixed deposits 10,948 1,202
 Cash at hand 37 23
 Bank overdraft (1) (14)

22,587 11,621

B) On October 1, 2005, a subsidiary acquired the business and assets of a third party in Australia 
[Note 15(b)]. The fair values of assets acquired were as follows:

      2005
     $’000

 Property, plant and equipment 257
 Inventories 550
 Intangible assets 1,300

2,107
 Goodwill arising on acquisition [Note 15(b)] 2,170

 Total consideration, satisfi ed by cash 4,277

CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
Financial year ended December 31, 2005

See accompanying notes to fi nancial statements.
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Notes:

C) On October 7, 2005, the group acquired the remaining 30% of the equity of a subsidiary, JNE Logistics 
Singapore Pte Ltd (“JNE”) [Note 15(a)]. The fair value of assets and liabilities acquired were as follows:

      2005
     $’000

 Property, plant and equipment 102
 Trade receivables 1,063
 Other receivables 189
 Cash and bank balances 4,566
 Trade payables (540)
 Other payables (1,683)
 Net assets of JNE 3,697

 Net assets attributable to the 30% equity interest acquired 1,109
 Goodwill [Note 15(a)] 511
 Total consideration, satisfi ed by cash 1,620

 Net cash arising from acquisition:
    Cash consideration paid 1,620
    Cash and cash equivalents acquired    -    

1,620

D) This relates to the additional consideration paid for the acquisition of 70% of the equity of JNE. [See 
Note E below and Note 15(a)]

E) The fair values of assets and liabilities represented by the acquisition of 70% equity interest in JNE on 
October 18, 2004 were as follows:

      2004
     $’000

 Property, plant and equipment 91
 Trade receivables 870
 Other receivables 172
 Cash and bank balances 1,915
 Trade payables (1,587)
 Other payables   (483)
 Net assets 978
 Minority interest   (293)

685
 Goodwill arising on acquisition [Note 15(a)] 3,103
 Total consideration 3,788
 Less:  Cash of subsidiary (1,915)

 Cash fl ow on acquisition, net of cash acquired 1,873

CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
Financial year ended December 31, 2005

See accompanying notes to fi nancial statements.
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1 GENERAL

 The company (Registration No. 197201105E) is incorporated in the Republic of Singapore with its principal 
place of business and registered offi ce at 25 Pandan Crescent #05-15 TIC Tech Centre, Singapore 128477. 
The company is listed on the mainboard of the Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited.  The 
fi nancial statements are expressed in Singapore dollars.

 The principal activities of the company are those of investment holding and provision of management and 
fi nancial services.

 The principal activities of the associates, joint venture and subsidiaries are disclosed in Notes 10, 11 and 12 
respectively to the fi nancial statements.

 The fi nancial statements of the group and the company for the year ended December 31, 2005 were 
authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on March 20, 2006.

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

 BASIS OF ACCOUNTING - The fi nancial statements are prepared in accordance with the historical cost 
convention and are drawn up in accordance with the provisions of the Singapore Companies Act and 
Singapore Financial Reporting Standards (“FRS”).

 In the current fi nancial year, the group has adopted all the new and revised FRS and Interpretations of 
FRS (“INT FRS”) issued by the Council on Corporate Disclosure and Governance that are relevant to its 
operations and effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2005.  The adoption of these 
new/revised FRS and INT FRS has no material effect on the fi nancial statements except as disclosed below 
and in the notes to fi nancial statements.

 FRS 39 - Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement

 FRS 39 requires the recognition and measurement of fi nancial assets and liabilities.  The new accounting 
standard moves measurement from a cost base to a fair value base for certain categories of fi nancial assets 
and liabilities.  The change in accounting policy has been accounted for prospectively in accordance with 
the transitional provisions of FRS 39. As the relevant accounting policy has been applied prospectively, the 
change has had no impact on the amounts reported for 2004 or prior periods.

 The group and the company early-adopted the requirements of the following new/revised FRS with effect 
from fi nancial year ended December 31, 2004:

 FRS 36 (revised) Impairment of Assets
 FRS 38 (revised) Intangible Assets
 FRS 103 Business Combination

 With the early adoption for the new/revised FRS, goodwill arising from the acquisition of subsidiaries is not 
amortised but is subject to evaluation for any impairment in value in accordance with FRS36 and FRS38. 
Any impairment loss is charged as an expense.  These new/revised FRS were applied on a prospective basis 
in accordance with the transitional provisions stipulated in the respective standards.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2005
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont’d)

 At the date of authorisation of these fi nancial statements, the following FRS and INT FRS were issued but 
not effective:

 FRS 40 - Investment Property
 FRS 106 - Exploration for and Evaluation of Mineral Resources
 FRS 107 - Financial Instruments: Disclosures
 INT FRS 104 - Determining whether an Arrangement contains a Lease
 INT FRS 105 - Rights to Interests arising from Decommissioning, Restoration 
     and Environmental Rehabilitation Funds
 INT FRS 106 - Liabilities Arising from Participating in a Specifi c Market – Waste 
    Electrical and Electronic Equipment
 INT FRS 107 - Applying the Restatement Approach under FRS 29 Financial 
    Reporting in Hyperinfl ationary Economies

 Amendments to FRS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements on Capital Disclosures.

 Amendments to FRS 21 – The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates relating to net investment in 
a foreign operation.

 Amendments to FRS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement on hedge accounting 
provisions, fair value option and fi nancial guarantee contracts.

 Amendments to FRS 101 First-time Adoption of Financial Reporting Standards on comparative disclosures 
for FRS 106 Exploration for and Evaluation of Mineral Resources. 

 Amendments to FRS 104 Insurance Contracts on fi nancial guarantee contracts. 

 Consequential amendments were also made to various standards as a result of these new/revised 
standards. 

 The directors anticipate that the adoption of the above FRS, INT FRS and amendments that were issued 
but not yet effective until future periods will not have a material impact on the fi nancial statements of 
the company and the group.

 BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION – The consolidated fi nancial statements incorporate the fi nancial statements 
of the company and entities controlled by the company (its subsidiaries).  Control is achieved where 
the company has the power to govern the fi nancial and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain 
benefi ts from its activities.

 The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the year are included in the consolidated profi t 
and loss statement from the effective date of acquisition or up to the effective date of disposal, as 
appropriate.

 Where necessary, adjustments are made to the fi nancial statements of subsidiaries to bring their 
accounting policies into line with those used by other members of the group.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont’d)

 All intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses are eliminated on consolidation.

 Minority interests in the net assets of consolidated subsidiaries are identifi ed separately from the group’s 
equity therein.  Minority interests consist of the amount of those interests at the date of the original 
business combination (see below) and the minority’s share of changes in equity since the date of the 
combination.  Losses applicable to the minority in excess of the minority’s interest in the subsidiary’s 
entity are allocated against the interests of the group except to the extent that the minority has a binding 
obligation and is able to make an additional investment to cover its share of those losses.

 In the company’s fi nancial statements, investments in subsidiaries, associates and the joint venture are 
carried at cost less any impairment in net recoverable value that has been recognised in the profi t and 
loss statement.

 BUSINESS COMBINATIONS - The acquisition of subsidiaries is accounted for using the purchase method. 
The cost of the acquisition is measured at the aggregate of the fair values, at the date of exchange, of 
assets given, liabilities incurred or assumed, and equity instruments issued by the group in exchange for 
control of the acquiree, plus any costs directly attributable to the business combination. The acquiree’s 
identifi able assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities that meet the conditions for recognition under FRS 
103 are recognised at their fair values at the acquisition date, except for non-current assets (or disposal 
groups) that are classifi ed as held for sale in accordance with FRS 105 Non-Current Assets Held for Sale 
and Discontinued Operations, which are recognised and measured at fair value less costs to sell.

 Goodwill arising on acquisition is recognised as an asset and initially measured at cost, being the excess 
of the cost of the business combination over the group’s interest in the net fair value of the identifi able 
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities recognised. If, after reassessment, the group’s interest in the net 
fair value of the acquiree’s identifi able assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities exceeds the cost of the 
business combination, the excess is recognised immediately in the consolidated profi t and loss statement.

 The interest of minority shareholders in the acquiree is initially measured at the minority’s proportion of 
the net fair value of the assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities recognised.

 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - Financial assets and fi nancial liabilities are recognised on the group’s balance 
sheet when the group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

 Trade and other receivables

 Trade and other receivables are measured at initial recognition at fair value, and are subsequently 
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method. Appropriate allowances for 
estimated irrecoverable amounts are recognised in the profi t and loss statement when there is objective 
evidence that the asset is impaired. The allowance recognised is measured as the difference between the 
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash fl ows discounted at the effective 
interest rate computed at initial recognition. 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2005



Annual Report 2005 • TECKWAH INDUSTRIAL CORPORATION LTD 47

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont’d)

 Investments

 Investments are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis where the purchase or sale of an 
investment is under a contract whose terms require delivery of the investment within the timeframe 
established by the market concerned, and are initially measured at fair value, plus directly attributable 
transaction costs.

 Investments classifi ed as available-for-sale are measured at subsequent reporting dates at fair value. 
Gains and losses arising from changes in fair value are recognised directly in equity, until the investment 
is disposed of or is determined to be impaired, at which time the cumulative gain or loss previously 
recognised in equity is included in the profi t or loss for the period. Impairment losses recognised in profi t 
or loss for equity investments classifi ed as available-for-sale are not subsequently reversed through profi t 
or loss.

 Cash and cash equivalents

 Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits, bank overdrafts, and other 
short-term highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to a known amount of cash and are 
subject to an insignifi cant risk of changes in value.

 Financial liabilities and equity

 Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by the group are classifi ed according to the substance 
of the contractual arrangements entered into and the defi nitions of a fi nancial liability and an equity 
instrument. An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the 
group after deducting all of its liabilities. The accounting policies adopted for specifi c fi nancial liabilities 
and equity instruments are set out below.

 Bank borrowings

 Interest-bearing bank loans and overdrafts are initially measured at fair value, and are subsequently 
measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest rate method. 

 Trade and other payables

 Trade and other payables are initially measured at fair value, and are subsequently measured at amortised 
cost, using the effective interest rate method.

 Equity instruments

 Equity instruments issued by the company are recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

 LEASES - Leases are classifi ed as fi nance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all 
the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee.  All other leases are classifi ed as operating leases.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont’d)

 Assets held under fi nance leases are recognised as assets of the group at their fair value at the date of 
acquisition.  The corresponding liability to the lessor is included in the balance sheet as a fi nance lease 
obligation.  Finance costs, which represent the difference between the total lease commitments and the 
fair value of the assets acquired, are charged to the income statement over the term of the relevant lease 
using the effective interest rate method.

 Rentals payable under operating leases are charged to income statement on a straight-line basis over the 
term of the relevant lease.

 INVENTORIES - Inventories are measured at the lower of standard cost and net realisable value.  The 
standard cost used approximates the average actual cost which includes all costs of purchase, cost of 
conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present locations and condition. 
Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price less all estimated costs to completion and costs 
to be incurred in marketing, selling and distribution.

 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT - Property, plant and equipment are carried at cost less accumulated 
depreciation and any impairment loss where the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated to be lower 
than its carrying amount.

 Depreciation is charged so as to write off the cost of assets over their estimated useful lives, using the 
straight-line method, on the following bases:

 Leasehold land - 1%
 Leasehold buildings - 1% to 20%
 Plant and machinery - 10% to 20%
 Offi ce equipment, furniture and fi ttings - 10% to 331/3%
 Motor vehicles - 18% to 20%

 No depreciation is provided on freehold land and construction in progress.

 Assets held under fi nance leases arrangements are depreciated over their expected useful lives on the 
same basis as owned assets.

 Fully depreciated assets still in use are retained in the fi nancial statements.

 The gain or loss arising on disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment is 
determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amounts of the asset and is 
recognised in the profi t and loss statement.

 INTANGIBLE ASSETS - Intangible assets are measured initially at purchased cost and amortised over 
straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives.

 The amortisation periods are as follows:

  Country club memberships  -   30 years
  Approved replicator rights (Note 14) -   5 years
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont’d)

 GOODWILL - Goodwill arising on the acquisition of a subsidiary or a jointly controlled entity represents 
the excess of the cost of acquisition over the group’s interest in the net fair value of the identifi able 
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities of the subsidiary or jointly controlled entity recognised at the 
date of acquisition. Goodwill is initially recognised as an asset at cost and is subsequently measured at 
cost less any accumulated impairment losses. 

 For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to each of the group’s cash-generating units 
expected to benefi t from the synergies of the combination. Cash-generating units to which goodwill has 
been allocated are tested for impairment annually, or more frequently when there is an indication that 
the unit may be impaired. If the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit is less than the carrying 
amount of the unit, the impairment loss is allocated fi rst to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill 
allocated to the unit and then to the other assets of the unit pro-rata on the basis of the carrying amount 
of each asset in the unit. An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent 
period.

 On disposal of a subsidiary or a jointly controlled entity, the attributable amount of goodwill is included 
in the determination of the profi t or loss on disposal.

 The group’s policy for goodwill arising on the acquisition of an associate is described under ‘Associates’ 
below.

 IMPAIRMENT OF TANGIBLE AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS EXCLUDING GOODWILL - At each balance sheet 
date, the group reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to determine whether 
there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, 
the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss 
(if any). Where it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the group 
estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

 Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use. In assessing value in use, 
the estimated future cash fl ows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that 
refl ects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specifi c to the asset. 

 If the recoverable amount of an asset (cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying 
amount, the carrying amount of the asset (cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. 
An impairment loss is recognised immediately in the profi t and loss statement, unless the relevant asset is 
carried at a revalued amount, in which case the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation decrease.

 Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (cash-generating 
unit) is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying 
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss 
been recognised for the asset (cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is 
recognised immediately in the profi t and loss statement, unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued 
amount, in which case the reversal of the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation increase.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont’d)

 ASSOCIATES - An associate is an entity over which the company has signifi cant infl uence and that is 
neither a subsidiary nor an interest in a joint venture. Signifi cant infl uence is the power to participate in 
the fi nancial and operating policy decisions of the investee but is not control or joint control over those 
policies.

 The results and assets and liabilities of associates are incorporated in these fi nancial statements using 
the equity method of accounting, except when the investment is classifi ed as held for sale, in which 
case it is accounted for under FRS 105 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations. 
Under the equity method, investments in associates are carried in the consolidated balance sheet at cost 
as adjusted for post-acquisition changes in the company’s share of the net assets of the associate, less 
any impairment in the value of individual investments. Losses of an associate in excess of the company’s 
interest in that associate (which includes any long-term interests that, in substance, form part of the 
company’s net investment in the associate) are not recognised.

 Any excess of the cost of acquisition over the group’s share of the net fair value of the identifi able assets, 
liabilities and contingent liabilities of the associate recognised at the date of acquisition is recognised 
as goodwill. The goodwill is included within the carrying amount of the investment and is assessed 
for impairment as part of the investment. Any excess of the group’s share of the net fair value of the 
identifi able assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities over the cost of acquisition, after reassessment, is 
recognised immediately in the consolidated profi t and loss statement.

 Where a group entity transacts with an associate of the group, profi ts and losses are eliminated to the 
extent of the group’s interest in the relevant associate. 

 JOINT VENTURE - A joint venture is a contractual arrangement whereby the group and other parties 
undertake an economic activity that is subject to joint control, that is when the strategic fi nancial and 
operating policy decisions relating to the activities require the unanimous consent of the parties sharing 
control.

 Where a group entity undertakes its activities under joint venture arrangements directly, the group’s share 
of jointly controlled assets and any liabilities incurred jointly with other venturers are recognised in the 
fi nancial statements of the relevant entity and classifi ed according to their nature. Liabilities and expenses 
incurred directly in respect of interests in jointly controlled assets are accounted for on an accrual basis. 
Income from the sale or use of the group’s share of the output of jointly controlled assets, and its share 
of joint venture expenses, are recognised when it is probable that the economic benefi ts associated with 
the transactions will fl ow to/from the group and their amount can be measured reliably.

 Joint venture arrangements that involve the establishment of a separate entity in which each venturer 
has an interest are referred to as jointly controlled entities. The group reports its interests in jointly 
controlled entities using proportionate consolidation, except when the investment is classifi ed as held for 
sale, in which case it is accounted for under FRS 105 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued 
Operations. The group’s share of the assets, liabilities, income and expenses of jointly controlled entities 
are combined with the equivalent items in the consolidated fi nancial statements on a line-by-line basis.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont’d)

 Any goodwill arising on the acquisition of the group’s interest in a jointly controlled entity is accounted 
for in accordance with the group’s accounting policy for goodwill arising on the acquisition of a subsidiary 
(see above).

 Where the group transacts with its jointly controlled entities, unrealised profi ts and losses are eliminated 
to the extent of the group’s interest in the joint venture. 

 PROVISIONS - Provisions are recognised when the group has a present obligation as a result of a past 
event, and it is probable that the group will be required to settle that obligation. Provisions are measured 
at the directors’ best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the obligation at the balance sheet 
date, and are discounted to present value where the effect is material.

 REVENUE RECOGNITION – Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or 
receivable and represents amounts receivable for goods provided in the normal course of business, net of 
discounts and sales related taxes.

 Revenue from rendering of services is recognised upon provision of such services.

 Rental income related to the logistics business is recognised on a time proportionate basis.

 Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective 
interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through 
the expected life of the fi nancial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount.

 Dividend income from investments is recognised when the shareholders’ rights to receive payment have 
been established.

 RETIREMENT BENEFIT COSTS - Payments to defi ned contribution retirement benefi t plans are charged as 
an expense as they fall due. Payments made to state-managed retirement benefi t schemes, such as the 
Singapore Central Provident Fund, are dealt with as payments to defi ned contribution plans where the 
group’s obligations under the plans are equivalent to those arising in a defi ned contribution retirement 
benefi t plan.

  EMPLOYEE LEAVE ENTITLEMENT - Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised when they 
accrue to employees.  A provision is made for the estimated liability for annual leave as a result of 
services rendered by employees up to the balance sheet date.

 INCOME TAX - Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax. 

 The tax currently payable is based on taxable profi t for the year. Taxable profi t differs from profi t 
as reported in the profi t and loss statement because it excludes items of income or expense that are 
taxable or deductible in other years and it further excludes items that are not taxable or tax deductible. 
The group’s liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively 
enacted in countries where the subsidiaries operate by the balance sheet date.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont’d)

 Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the 
fi nancial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profi t, and is 
accounted for using the balance sheet liability method. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for 
all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable 
that taxable profi ts will be available against which deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such 
assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from goodwill or from the initial 
recognition (other than in a business combination) of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that 
affects neither the taxable profi t nor the accounting profi t.

 Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences arising on investments in 
subsidiaries and associates, and interests in joint ventures, except where the group is able to control the 
reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in 
the foreseeable future.

 The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to the 
extent that it is no longer probable that suffi cient taxable profi ts will be available to allow all or part of 
the asset to be recovered.

 Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period when the liability is 
settled or the asset realised. Deferred tax is charged or credited to profi t or loss, except when it relates to 
items charged or credited directly to equity, in which case the deferred tax is also dealt with in equity.

 Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off current 
tax assets against current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation 
authority and the company intends to settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.

 FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSACTIONS AND TRANSLATION - The individual fi nancial statements of each 
group entity are presented in the currency of the primary economic environment in which the entity 
operates (its functional currency). The consolidated fi nancial statements of the group and the balance 
sheet of the company are presented in Singapore dollars, which is the functional currency of the 
company, and the presentation currency for the consolidated fi nancial statements.

 In preparing the fi nancial statements of the individual entities, transactions in currencies other 
than the entity’s functional currency are recorded at the rates of exchange prevailing on the date of 
the transaction. At each balance sheet date, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are 
retranslated at the rates prevailing on the balance sheet date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value 
that are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date when the 
fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign 
currency are not retranslated.

 Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items, and on retranslation of monetary 
items are included in profi t or loss for the period. Exchange differences arising on the retranslation of 
non-monetary items carried at fair value are included in profi t or loss for the period except for differences 
arising on the retranslation of non-monetary items in respect of which gains and losses are recognised 
directly in equity. For such non-monetary items, any exchange component of that gain or loss is also 
recognised directly in equity.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont’d)

 For the purpose of presenting consolidated fi nancial statements, the assets and liabilities of the group’s 
foreign operations (including comparatives) are expressed in Singapore dollars using exchange rates 
prevailing on the balance sheet date. Income and expense items (including comparatives) are translated 
at the average exchange rates for the period, unless exchange rates fl uctuated signifi cantly during that 
period, in which case the exchange rates at the dates of the transactions are used. Exchange differences 
arising, if any, are classifi ed as equity and transferred to the group’s translation reserve. Such translation 
differences are recognised in profi t or loss in the period in which the foreign operation is disposed of.

 On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the translation of the net investment in foreign 
entities (including monetary items that, in substance, form part of the net investment in foreign entities), 
and of borrowings and other currency instruments designated as hedges of such investments, are taken 
to the foreign currency translation reserve.

 Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of a foreign operation are treated as assets 
and liabilities of the foreign operation and translated at the closing rate.

3 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY 

 The group’s accounting policies and use of estimates are integral to the reported results.  Certain 
accounting estimates require exercise of management’s judgement in determining the appropriate 
methodology for valuation of assets and liabilities.  The group believes its estimates for determining the 
valuation of its assets and liabilities are appropriate.

 The key assumptions concerning the future, and the key sources of estimation uncertainty at the balance 
sheet date, that have a signifi cant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets 
and liabilities within the next fi nancial are as follows:

 Measurement of intangible asset

 During the year, management recognised separately an intangible asset, approved replicator rights, upon 
acquisition of certain assets by a subsidiary which is included in its balance sheet at December 31, 2005 
at $1,300,000 (Note 14).  The fair value of the intangible asset requires the entity to estimate future cash 
fl ows and suitable discount rate in order to calculate fair value of the asset.  The management exercise 
judgement in determining the discount rates, estimates of future cash fl ows and other factors used in 
the valuation process.  Also, judgement may be applied in estimating prices for less readily observable 
external parameters.  Other factors such as model assumptions, market dislocations and unexpected 
correlations can also materially affect these estimates and the resulting fair value estimates.

 Impairment review of goodwill on consolidation 

 The group performs an impairment review to ensure that carrying value of the goodwill amounting to 
$8,254,000 does not exceed its recoverable amount from the cash-generating units to which goodwill 
has been allocated.  The value in use calculation requires the entity to estimate the future cash fl ows 
expected to arise from the cash-generating unit and a suitable discount rate in order to calculate present 
value. Therefore, in arriving at the recoverable amount, management exercise judgement in estimating 
future cash fl ows, growth rates and discount rates.
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3 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (cont’d)

 Impairment of investment in subsidiaries and associates 

 Detemining whether investments in subsidiaries and associates are impaired requires estimation of the 
net recoverable value of these investments. As those investments subject to impairment allowance are in 
loss position, the net asset value is used to approximate the net recoverable value.

4 FINANCIAL RISKS AND MANAGEMENT

 The group’s overall risk management programme seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the 
fi nancial performance of the group.

a) Foreign currency risk

 The group’s foreign currency exposures arise mainly from the exchange rate movements of the U.S. 
dollar relative to Singapore dollar.  Natural hedges are used to manage some of these risks.  The 
group generally does not use fi nancial derivative contracts to manage foreign currency risks.

b) Interest rate risk

 The group is exposed to the effect of changes in interest rates attributable to interest-earning cash 
balances and interest-bearing loans, most of which are at variable rates.  Interest rates on fi nance 
lease obligations are fi xed for the duration of the lease, typically for 3 to 5 years.

c) Credit risk

 Credit risk refers to the risk that debtors may default on their obligations to repay amounts owing 
to the group resulting in a loss to the group.  The group manages such risks by dealing with 
creditworthy customers.  The largest customer of the group accounts for approximately 19% of 
revenue.  Other than this customer, there is no signifi cant concentration of credit given to any 
single customer or group of customers.  Credit risk is managed by a credit evaluation process 
which includes assessment and evaluation of existing and potential customers’ credit standing 
to determine credit limits to be granted, credit policies, credit control and collection procedures. 
Payments are monitored for compliance with credit terms.

 The group places its cash and cash equivalents with creditworthy institutions.

 The maximum exposure to credit risk in the event that the counterparties fail to perform the 
obligations as at the end of the fi nancial year in relation to each class of fi nancial assets is the 
carrying amounts of these assets in the balance sheet.

d) Liquidity risk

 The group has adequate cash and credit facilities for its operating requirements.

e) Fair values of fi nancial assets and fi nancial liabilities

 The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents, trade and other current receivables and 
payables and other liabilities approximate their fair values due to the relatively short-term maturity 
of these fi nancial instruments.

 The fair value of other classes of fi nancial assets and liabilities are disclosed in the respective note 
to the fi nancial statements.
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5 CASH AND BANK BALANCES
 GROUP COMPANY
    2005 2004 2005 2004
   $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

 Cash at bank 11,603 10,410 583 654
 Fixed deposits 10,948 1,202 -   -  
 Cash on hand       37       23     1     3

  22,588 11,635 584 657

 Cash and bank balances comprise cash held by the group and short-term fi xed deposits with an original 
maturity of three months or less. The carrying amounts of these assets approximate their fair values.

 Short-term fi xed deposits earn interest at rates ranging from 0.7% to 3.5% (2004 : 0.7% to 1.25%) per 
annum.

 The group and company’s cash and bank balances that are not denominated in the functional currencies 
of the respective entities are as follows:

 GROUP COMPANY
    2005 2004 2005 2004
   $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

 United States dollar 2,257 4,008 3 23
 Singapore dollar 954 583 -   -  
 New Taiwan dollar 365 23 365 88
 Rupiah 48 42   -     -  
 Hong Kong dollar 18 17 -   -  
 Renminbi      4        4    4    4

6 TRADE RECEIVABLES
 GROUP COMPANY
    2005 2004 2005 2004
   $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

 Outside parties 41,179 30,762 133 1,225
 Allowance for doubtful debts     (586)  (1,503)    -          (941)
  40,593 29,259 133 284
 Associates (Note 10) -      -      -      -     
 Joint venture (Note 11) 5,879 4,891 -      -     
 Subsidiaries (Note 12)     -          -      21,304 20,149

 Total 46,472 34,150 21,437 20,433
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6 TRADE RECEIVABLES (cont’d)

 The group and company’s trade receivables that are not denominated in the functional currencies of the 
respective entities are as follows:

 GROUP COMPANY
    2005 2004 2005 2004
   $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

 United States dollar 23,265 13,628 441 562
 Singapore dollar 1,926 1,530 -   -  
 Korea won 50 168   -     -   
 New Taiwan dollar 129 279 129 279
 Japanese yen 87 -      -   -  
 New Zealand dollar 61 -      -   -  
 Rupiah 8 21 -   -  
 Ringgit        3      -        -     -  

7 OTHER RECEIVABLES AND PREPAYMENTS
 GROUP COMPANY
    2005 2004 2005 2004
   $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

 Associates (Note 10) 152 425 -     -    
 Subsidiaries (Note 12) -     -     9,144 7,670
 Other receivables 1,210 674 622 1
 Deposits 1,215 662 101 11
 Prepayments 630 1,058 99 160
 Income tax recoverable      47      73    -        -    

 Total 3,254 2,892 9,966 7,842

 The group and company’s other receivables that are not denominated in the functional currencies of the 
respective entities are as follows:

 GROUP COMPANY
    2005 2004 2005 2004
   $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

 Korea won 148 -       -     -    
 United States dollar 45 586 2,058 2,585
 New Taiwan dollar 25 56 25 56
 Renminbi   -     -   1,057 1,012
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8 INVENTORIES
 GROUP
    2005 2004
   $’000 $’000

 Finished goods 5,131 5,264
 Work-in-progress 752 646
 Raw materials 13,530 13,975

 Total 19,413 19,885

9 FUNDS UNDER MANAGEMENT

 This represented funds that were placed under the discretionary management of a fi nancial institution for 
a period of two years ending in September 2006.  This has been fully liquidated in 2005.

 The terms of management included a defi nition of classes of assets that may be invested and a cap on 
the amount which may be invested in equities.  Management fee was payable at a percentage of the 
market value of the fund determined on a quarterly basis.  A profi t share is payable to the fund manager 
at the end of the management period should returns on the fund exceed a pre-agreed percentage.

 The funds at the year-end comprised the following:

 GROUP COMPANY
    2005 2004 2005 2004
   $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

 At cost:
    Quoted equity shares -     2,231 -      2,231
    Cash and deposits -     2,341 -      2,341
    Quoted bonds -     785 -      785
    Unquoted bonds -     3,460 -      3,460
    Quoted bond fund -     1,200 -      1,200
    Others     -           37    -            37

      -     10,054    -      10,054
 Market value of:
    Quoted equity shares -     2,441 -     2,441
    Quoted bonds -     780 -     780
    Unquoted bonds -     3,451 -     3,451

    Quoted bond fund     -       1,224     -       1,224

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2005
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10 ASSOCIATES
 GROUP
    2005 2004
   $’000 $’000

 Cost of investment in associates 1,057 1,057
 Share of post-acquisition accumulated (losses)/profi ts (104) 179
 Impairment loss   (571)    -    
 Carrying value    382 1,236

 The details of the group’s associates at December 31, 2005 are as follows:
  Proportion of

  Principal activities/Country of ownership interest/ 
 Name of associate incorporation and operation  voting power held
    2005 2004
    % %

 Unicon Management & Management and consultancy 45.1 45.1
 Consultants (S) Pte Ltd services/
  Singapore

 Teckwah Value Chain Provision of value chain 30 30
 (Korea) Co., Ltd management services/
  Republic of Korea

 Nextep Media, Inc. On-line distribution, development 30 30
  and import of computer software
  and digital entertainment content/
  Republic of Korea 

 During the year, group entities entered into the following trading transactions with associates:

 GROUP COMPANY
    2005 2004 2005 2004
   $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

 Service fee income -     (166) -  - 
 Rental income -     (13) -  (13)
 Purchase of goods and services 1,342 1,516 -  - 
 Purchase of equipment -    47 -  - 
 Miscellaneous charges    142      18  -  18

 The amounts due to/from associates are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.

 During the fi nancial year, amount of $430,000 (2004 : $Nil) due from an associate was determined to be 
irrecoverable and was written off in the profi t and loss statement.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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10 ASSOCIATES (cont’d)

 Summarised fi nancial information in respect of the group’s associates is set out below:

 GROUP
    2005 2004
   $’000 $’000

 Total assets 3,541 3,542
 Total liabilities (2,389) (1,519)

 Net assets 1,152 2,023

 Group’s share of associates’ net assets    309    592
 Goodwill included in carrying value     73    644

 Carrying value    382 1,236

 Revenue 5,123 5,555

 Loss for the year   (942) (1,016)

 Group’s share of associates’ loss for the year   (283)   (303)

11 JOINT VENTURE
 COMPANY
    2005 2004
   $’000 $’000

 Unquoted equity shares, at cost 4,216 4,216

 The details of the joint venture are as follows:

  Effective
   equity interest/
  Principal activities/Country of Voting power 
 Name of joint venture incorporation and place of business  held by group
    2005 2004
    % %

 PPH Teckwah Value Investment holding and 50 50
 Chain Sdn Bhd (a) provision of management
  services/
  Malaysia

(a) Audited by an overseas practice of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu.

 The amounts due to/from the joint venture are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.
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11 JOINT VENTURE

 The following amounts are included in the fi nancial statements of the group as a result of proportionate 
consolidation of the joint venture.

 GROUP
    2005 2004
   $’000 $’000

 Current assets 8,850 16,306
 Non-current assets 5,627 5,181
 Current liabilities (6,075) (14,398)
 Non-current liabilities  (1,702)  (1,569)

 Net assets   6,700   5,520

 Revenue 21,537 21,207
 Expenses (20,341) (20,320)
 Profi t before income tax 1,196 887
 Income tax     (145)     (269)

 Profi t after income tax   1,051      618

12 SUBSIDIARIES
 COMPANY
    2005 2004
   $’000 $’000

 Unquoted equity shares, at cost 25,045 25,045
 Less: Impairment loss  (6,093)     -     

18,952 25,045

 The details of the company’s subsidiaries at December 31, 2005 are as follows:

  Principal activities/  Proportion of
  Country of incorporation  ownership interest and
 Name of subsidiary (or registration) and operation voting power held
    2005 2004 
    % %

 TIC Capital Pte Ltd  Investment holding and provision 100 100
  of management services/
  Singapore

 Teckwah Value Chain Pte Ltd Investment holding; manufacturer 100 100
   of paper products and importers,
  exporters of paper and paper products;
  provision of value chain management
  services and graphic design/
  Singapore

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2005
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2005

12 SUBSIDIARIES (cont’d)
  Principal activities/  Proportion of
  Country of incorporation  ownership interest and
 Name of subsidiary (or registration) and operation voting power held
    2005 2004 
    % %

 Techwave Media Provision of value chain 100 100
 Services Pte Ltd management services/
  Singapore

 Teckwah Logistics Pte Ltd Provision of third party logistic 100 100
  services/
  Singapore

 Teckwah China Investment holding/ 100 100
 Corporation Pte Ltd Singapore

 Teckwah Online Pte Ltd Provision of network services 100 100
  including on-line games and 
  distribution of games software/
  Singapore

 Niche Management Training and consultancy 100 100
 & Consultants (M) services/
 Sdn Bhd (a)(i) Malaysia

 P.T. Teckwah Paper Manufacture and sales of 100 100
 Products Indonesia (a)(ii) corrugated boxes/
  Indonesia

 Wuxi Teckwah Printing Manufacture of fl exible 100 100
 & Packaging Co., Ltd (b)(i) packing and printing materials/
  People’s Republic of China (“PRC”)

 Teckwah Value Provision of value chain 100 100
 Chain (Shanghai) management services/ 
 Co., Ltd (b)(i) PRC

 Teckwah Packaging Provision of value chain 100 100
 Systems (Shanghai) management services/
 Co., Ltd (b)(i) PRC

 Teckwah Packaging Provision of value chain 100 100
 Systems (Suzhou) management services/
 Co., Ltd (b)(i) PRC

 Teckwah Packaging Provision of value chain 100 100
 Systems (Shenzhen) management services/
 Co., Ltd (b)(ii) PRC

 Teckwah Value Provision of value chain 49 49
 Chain (Thailand) management services/
 Co., Ltd (b)(iii),(c) Thailand
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12 SUBSIDIARIES (cont’d)
  Principal activities/  Proportion of
  Country of incorporation  ownership interest and
 Name of subsidiary (or registration) and operation voting power held
    2005 2004 
    % %

 Teckwah Value Chain Provision of value chain  70 70  
 (Japan) Co., Ltd (b)(iv) management services/
  Japan

 JNE Logistics Singapore Critical parts management/ 100 70 
 Pte Ltd (d) Singapore

 Teckwah Online  Provision of network services 100 - 
 Shanghai Ltd (b)(v) including on-line games and
  distribution of games software/ 
  PRC

 Teckwah Value Chain Provision of value chain  100 - 
 Pty Ltd (a)(vi) management services/
  Australia

 The above subsidiaries are audited by Deloitte and Touche, Singapore except as indicated below:

 (a) These subsidiaries are audited by the following overseas practices of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu:

(i) Deloitte KassimChan, Malaysia
(ii) Hans Tuanakotta & Mustafa Indonesia

 (b) The subsidiaries are audited by another fi rm of auditors as follows:

(i) Horwath China (Shanghai) Certifi ed Public Accountants
(ii) Guangdong Yangcheng CPAs Co., Ltd
(iii) S.K. Accountant Services Company Limited
(iv) Iwata Accounting Offi ce
(v) Shanghai JaHwa Certifi ed Public Accountants
(vi) William Buck (NSW) Pty Ltd

(c) Although the group does not own more than 50% of the equity shares and consequently 
it does not control more than half of the voting power of those shares, it has the contractual 
right to appoint the majority of the board of directors and control of the entity is by the board. 
Consequently, Teckwah Value Chain (Thailand) Co., Ltd is controlled by the group and is 
consolidated in these fi nancial statements.

(d) During the fi nancial year, the group acquired the remaining 30% equity interest in JNE Logistics 
Singapore Pte Ltd from the minority shareholders [Note 15(a)].

 The amounts due to/from subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free and payable on demand.
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13 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
       Offi ce
       equipment,
     Construction  furniture
  Leasehold Leasehold Freehold in- Plant and and Motor
  land  buildings  land progress machinery fi ttings vehicles Total
  $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000
 Group

 Cost:
  At January 1, 2004 1,644 54,419 635 338 52,619 9,905 1,366 120,926
  Currency realignment (64) (162) (25) (13) (985) (130) (28) (1,407)
  Acquisition of subsidiary -     10 -    -   -      151 39 200
  Additions -     344 -   -   5,352 1,494 -     7,190
  Disposals -     (49,171) -   -   (7,258) (106) (70) (56,605)
  Reclassifi cation    -          213   -   (325)   1,583 (1,471)    -          -     
  At January 1, 2005 1,580   5,653 610   -   51,311 9,843 1,307   70,304
  Currency realignment 57 176 15 -   905 100 21 1,274
  Additions -     58 -   -   3,526 836 105 4,525
  Disposals -    (212) -   -   (1,351) (290) (343) (2,196)
  Reclassifi cation    -            (3)   -     -        189     (186)    -         -     
  At December 31, 2005 1,637   5,672 625   -   54,580 10,303 1,090 73,907

 Accumulated depreciation:
  At January 1, 2004 326 5,850 -   -   28,033 5,652 1,015 40,876
  Currency realignment (14) (32) -   -   (503) (71) (23) (643)
  Acquisition of subsidiary -     12 -   -   -      89 8 109
  Charge for the
   fi nancial year 34 870 -   -   4,305 1,203 136 6,548
  Disposals -     (5,723) -   -   (5,517) (63) (59) (11,362)
  Reclassifi cation    -      1   -     -     1,127 (1,128)    -          -     
  At January 1, 2005    346      978   -     -   27,445 5,682 1,077   35,528
  Currency realignment 12 37 -    -   427 49 16 541
  Charge for the 
   fi nancial year 18 382 -   -   4,374 1,373 142 6,289
  Disposals -     (31) -   -   (829) (196) (343) (1,399)
  Reclassifi cation    -           (3)   -     -        170    (167)    -          -     
  At December 31, 2005    376 1,363   -     -   31,587 6,741   892 40,959

 Impairment loss:
  At January 1, 2004 -     -      -   -   386 -     -     386
  Charge for the
   fi nancial year     -        -        -     -        140       2    -           142
  At January 1, 2005    -        -        -     -        526       2    -           528
  Disposals    -        -        -     -      (358)    -        -          (358)
  At December 31, 2005    -        -        -     -       168        2    -          170

 Carrying amount:
  At December 31, 2005 1,261 4,309 625   -   22,825 3,560    198 32,778

  At December 31, 2004 1,234 4,675 610   -   23,340 4,159    230   34,248
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13 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (cont’d)

   Offi ce
   equipment,
 Leasehold Plant and furniture Motor
  buildings  machinery and fi ttings vehicles Total
 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000
 Company

 Cost:
    At January 1, 2004 50,039 3,015 3,189 637 56,880
    Transfer (1) (12) (16) (563) -   (591)
    Additions -      -     78 -   78
    Disposals (49,171) (2,873)     (30)   -   (52,074)
    At January 1, 2005     856    126 2,674 637   4,293
    Transfer (1) -      -     (96) -   (96)
    Additions -      -     98 -   98
    Disposals     -         -         (88) (272)      (360)
    At December 31, 2005      856    126 2,588 365   3,935

 Accumulated depreciation:
    At January 1, 2004 5,232 1,545 2,202 486 9,465
    Transfer (1) (3) (16) (343) -   (362)
    Change for the fi nancial year  617 179 358 72 1,226
    Disposals  (5,723) (1,622)     (14)   -    (7,359)
    At January 1, 2005      123     86 2,203 558   2,970
    Transfer (1) -      -     (129) -   (129)
    Charge for the fi nancial year 77 10 244 73 404
    Disposals     -        -         (88) (272)     (360)
    At December 31, 2005     200      96 2,230 359   2,885

 Carrying amount:
    At December 31, 2005     656      30    358    6   1,050

    At December 31, 2004      733      40    471   79   1,323

(1)   This pertains to transfer of plant and equipment to subsidiaries.

 The net book values of plant and equipment acquired under fi nance lease are as follows:

 GROUP COMPANY
    2005 2004 2005 2004
   $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

 Plant and machinery 1,127 3,096   -  51
 Motor vehicles 6 79 6 79
 Offi ce equipment     -          25   -   - 
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14 INTANGIBLE ASSETS
 GROUP COMPANY
  Approved 
 Country club replicator  Country club
 memberships rights Total memberships  Total
 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

 Costs:
  At January 1, 2004 and 
  at January 1, 2005 354 - 354 354 354
  Acquired on acquisition of
  business by subsidiary    -   1,300 1,300   -     -  
  At December 31, 2005 354 1,300 1,654 354 354

 Amortisation:
  At January 1, 2004 162 - 162 162 162
  Amortisation for the year   11     -          11   11   11
  At January 1, 2005 173 - 173 173 173 
  Amortisation for the year   10     -          10   10   10
 At December 31, 2005 183     -        183 183 183

 Carrying amount:
  At December 31, 2005 171 1,300 1,471 171 171

  At December 31, 2004 181     -        181 181 181

 The approved replicator rights comprises the right to manufacture software products for a major software 
multinational corporation. It is subject to annual renewal without obligation to make additional payments 
to acquire the right.

 The cost of the replicator rights will be amortised over 5 years commencing in 2006 as the asset was only 
acquired in October 2005 [Note 15(b)] and the unrecognised amortisation for 2005 is immaterial.
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 15 GOODWILL
 GROUP
    2005 2004
   $’000 $’000

 At beginning of year 3,130 43
 Acquisition of the subsidiary, JNE(a) -      3,103
 Arising from additional purchase consideration for JNE(a) 2,954 -     
 Arising on acquisition of business by a subsidiary(b) 2,170 -    
 Elimination of amortisation accumulated prior to the 
    adoption of FRS 103 (Note 2) -     (14)
 Exchange difference    -           (2)

 At end of year 8,254 3,130

 Amortisation:
    At beginning of year      -     14
    Elimination of amortisation accumulated prior to the 
        adoption of FRS 103 (Note 2)     -          (14)
    At end of year     -         -    

(a) On October 18, 2004, the group acquired 70% of the issued capital of JNE Logistics Singapore Pte 
Ltd (“JNE”) for an initial consideration of $3,780,000.

 Additional consideration of $1,143,000 was paid in respect of this 70% equity interest in 2005 
based on the excess of net operating result of JNE for the 12 months ended July 31, 2005 over an 
amount of $1,350,000.

 On October 7, 2005, the group exercised the option (granted in the agreement dated October 
18, 2004) to acquire the remaining 30% equity interest in JNE for an initial consideration of 
$1,620,000. Additional consideration is payable in respect of this 30% equity interest based on 
the excess of net operating profi t of JNE for the 12 months ending July 31, 2006 over an amount 
of $1,350,000.  The directors have evaluated the performance of JNE, determined that payment 
of additional consideration is probable and have provided an amount of $1,300,000 (included in 
Note 18).

 This provisional amount of additional consideration is included in the cost of investments in 
subsidiaries (Note 12) and in the determination of goodwill arising from the acquisition in 2005.

 No provisional amount of additional consideration for the 70% equity interest acquired in 2004 
was made at the end of 2004 as it could not be estimated reliably as of that date.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2005
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15 GOODWILL (cont’d)

 Movements of goodwill relating to the acquisition of JNE are as follows:
         2005 2004
         $’000 $’000

    Arising from acquisition of 70% equity interest
     - original    -     3,103
     - incremental    1,143 -    
    Arising from acquisition of 30% equity interest
     - original    511 -    
     - provisional/incremental    1,300    -    
        2,954 3,103

   
   The contribution of JNE to the group between the date of the respective acquisitions and the year 

end are as follows:
         2005 2004
         $’000 $’000

   Revenue   13,734 2,854
   Profi t attributable to equity holders of the company     2,350    337

   
   Had the respective acquisitions in the two years being made at the beginning of the respective 

years, the group revenue and profi t attributable to equity holders of the company would be as 
follows:

         2005 2004
         $’000 $’000

   Revenue   181,764 153,621
   Profi t attributable to equity holders of the company   5,949 5,233

 Goodwill arising on the acquisition is attributable to the anticipated profi tability of JNE’s logistics 
business.  Operating synergies are expected from the combination of the logistic business of JNE 
with those of the group and potential related business opportunities for the group’s other business 
segment.

(b) On October 1, 2005, the group acquired the business and assets of a third party in Australia via 
Teckwah Value Chain Pty Ltd.  Goodwill arising on the acquisition is attributable to the anticipated 
profi tabilty from the software turnkey business in the Australia market. Potential business 
opportunities for the Group’s other market segment may arise by tapping on the competencies 
derived from this acquisition.  The acquisition also included an intangible asset, approved replicator 
rights (Note 14). 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2005
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15 GOODWILL (cont’d)

 The contribution of this acquisition to the group between the date of the acquisition and the year 
end are as follows:

      2005
     $’000

 Revenue 3,662
 Profi t attributable to equity holders of the company 263

 The changes to the contribution above, had the acquisition taken place at the beginning of the 
year are not determinable.

 Goodwill acquired in a business combination is allocated, at acquisition, to the cash generating 
units (CGUs) that are expected to benefi t from that business combination.  The carrying amount of 
goodwill had been allocated as follows:

 GROUP
    2005 2004
   $’000 $’000
   Business Segment

Print 2,197 27
Non-print 6,057 3,103

8,254 3,130

  The group tests goodwill annually for impairment, or more frequently if there are indications that 
goodwill might be impaired. 

  The recoverable amounts of the CGUs are determined using discounted cash fl ow projections. 
The key assumptions for the calculations are those regarding the discount rates, growth rates 
and direct costs during the period. Management estimates discount rates using pre-tax rates that 
refl ect current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specifi c to the CGUs. 
The growth rates are based on business trends. Changes in direct costs are based on past practices 
and expectations of future changes in the market.

  The group prepares cash fl ow forecasts derived from the most recent fi nancial budgets approved 
by management for the next fi ve years and extrapolates cash fl ows for the following fi ve years 
based on an estimated average growth rate of 3%. 

  The rate used to discount the forecast cash fl ows is 8%.
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16 BANK LOANS AND OVERDRAFTS
 GROUP
    2005 2004
   $’000 $’000

 Bank overdrafts 1 14
 Trust receipts 177 69
 Short-term bank loan 619 1,975

797 2,058

a) Included in the above balances are bank overdrafts and trust receipts of the joint venture 
amounting to $178,000 (2004 : $83,000) which bear interest at rates ranging from 3.25% to 7.5 
% (2004 : 4.25% to 7.5%) per annum.  These credit facilities are covered by the following:

i) a corporate guarantee by the joint venture and the company; and

ii) a negative pledge over all the current and future assets.

 In 2004, there was also a legal charge over the leasehold land and factory building with net book 
value of RM1,985,000 (equivalent to S$854,000).

b) The bank loan is guaranteed by the company and bears interest at 5.742% (2004 : 5.544%) per 
annum.

 The group’s borrowings are denominated in the functional currencies of the respective entities.

 Bank overdrafts and trust receipts are repayable on demand.  The short-term bank loan is repayable 
within a year.  The directors estimate that the fair value of the group’s borrowings approximates their 
carrying amounts.

17 TRADE PAYABLES
 GROUP COMPANY
    2005 2004 2005 2004
   $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

 Associates (Note 10) 146 221 -   -  
 Joint venture (Note 11) 1,762 96 -   -  
 Outside parties 27,920 21,867 302 373

  29,828 22,184 302 373

 Trade payables principally comprise amounts outstanding for trade purchase and ongoing costs.
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17 TRADE PAYABLES (cont’d)

 The group and company’s trade payables that are not denominated in the functional currencies of the 
respective entities are as follows:

 GROUP COMPANY
    2005 2004 2005 2004
   $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

 United States dollar 15,820 5,656 -   -  
 Singapore dollar 547 381 -   -  
 Hong Kong dollar      384    349   -     -   
 New Taiwan dollar 235 244 223 232
 Australia dollar 64 122 -   -  
 Rupiah 12 -     -   -  
 Ringgit 8 78 -   -  
 Peso         3        5   -     -  

18 OTHER PAYABLES
 GROUP COMPANY
    2005 2004 2005 2004
   $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

 Joint venture (Note 11) 2,070 259 -     -    
 Subsidiaries (Note 12) -      -     5,122 7,096
 Accrued operating expenses 9,936 5,303 1,464    936
 Provision for additional consideration
      for acquisition of shares in a 
      subsidiary [Note 15(a)] 1,300 - - -

  13,306 5,562 6,586 8,032

 The group and company’s other payables that are not denominated in the functional currencies of the 
respective entities are as follows:

 GROUP COMPANY
    2005 2004 2005 2004
   $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

 United States dollar 3,327 259 -    -  
 New Taiwan dollar      11   70 11 116
 Renminbi     -        -     4   -  
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19 FINANCE LEASES
 GROUP COMPANY
  Present value  Present value
 Minimum of minimum Minimum of minimum
 lease payments lease payments lease payments lease payments
  2005 2004 2005 2004 2005 2004 2005 2004
  $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

 Amounts payable
  under fi nance leases:

 Within 1 year 506 1,178 451 1,023 5 96 4 86
 In the second to 
  fi fth year inclusive 346    828 328    757   -      5   -     4
   852 2,006 779 1,780 5 101 4 90
 Less: Future fi nance 
  charges (73)   (226)   -      -        (1)  (11)   -    - 
 Present value of 
  lease obligations 779 1,780 779 1,780     4   90 4 90

 Less:  Amount due 
  for settlement 
  within 12 months 
  (shown under
  current  liabilities)   (451) (1,023)   (4) (86)
 Amount due for 
  settlement after 
  12 months   328    757     -      4

 It is the group’s policy to lease certain of its plant and equipment under fi nance leases.  The average term 
is 3 years.  For the year ended December 31, 2005, the average effective borrowing rate was between 
7.95% to 19.27% (2004 : 4.1% to 19.27 %) per annum.  Interest rates are fi xed at the contract date, 
and thus expose the group to fair value interest rate risk.  All leases are on a fi xed repayment basis and 
no arrangements have been entered into for contingent rental payments.

 All lease obligations are denominated in the functional currencies of the respective entities.

 The fair value of the group’s lease obligations approximate their carrying amount.

 Obligations under fi nance leases of the subsidiaries amounting to $518,000 in 2004 were guaranteed by 
the company.
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20 LONG-TERM BANK LOANS
 GROUP
    2005 2004
   $’000 $’000

 Bank loans 3,652 987

 The borrowings are repayable as follows:
    On demand or within one year 1,255 234
    In the second year 1,280 253
    In the third year 800 273
    In the fourth year    317 227

3,652 987
 Less: Amount due for settlement within 12
         months (shown under current liabilities) (1,255) (234)

 Amount due for settlement after 12 months 2,397 753

 The group’s borrowings are denominated in the functional currencies of the respective entities.

 The bank loans comprise the following:

a) term loan of $1,489,000 (2004 : $987,000) which bears interest at fi xed rates ranging from 5.0% 
to 8.55% (2004 : 7.65% to 8.55%) per annum, secured by a negative pledge on all the assets of 
a  subsidiary of the joint venture (Note 11) and guaranteed by a related company; and

b) an unsecured term loan of $2,163,000 (2004 : $Nil) which bears interest at a fi xed rate of 3.8% 
per annum and is guaranteed by the company.

 The directors estimate the fair value of the group’s borrowings, by discounting their future cash fl ows at 
the market rate, to be as follows:

 GROUP
    2005 2004
   $’000 $’000

 Bank loans 3,564 968
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21 DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES

 The following are the major deferred tax liabilities and assets recognised by the group and the company, 
and movements thereon during the current and prior reporting periods:

GROUP
 Accelerated Other
 tax temporary Tax
 depreciation differences losses Total
 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

 At January 1, 2005 1,795 5 - 1,800
 Charge/(Credit) to profi t and loss 
    for the year 265 (2) (34) 229
 Exchange differences      13  -    -       13

 At December 31, 2005 2,073  3 (34) 2,042

COMPANY

Deferred tax liabilities
 Accelerated
 tax
 depreciation
 $’000

 At January 1, 2005 and December 31, 2005 57

 Certain deferred tax assets and liabilities have been offset in accordance with the group and company’s 
accounting policy.  The following is the analysis of the components of the net deferred tax liability in the 
balance sheet:

    GROUP COMPANY
    2005 2004 2005 2004
   $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

 Deferred tax liabilities 2,076 1,800 57 57
 Deferred tax assets     (34)    -        -        -    

  2,042 1,800      57      57
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22 SHARE CAPITAL
 GROUP AND COMPANY
    2005 2004 2005 2004
 Number of ordinary 
 shares of $0.10 each Amount
   ’000 ’000 $’000 $’000

 Authorised 500,000 500,000 50,000 50,000

 Issued and paid up:
    At beginning of fi nancial year 228,002 227,690 22,800 22,769
    Issue of shares on exercise of share options       -           312       -           31
    At end of fi nancial year 228,002 228,002 22,800 22,800

 The company has one class of ordinary shares which carries no right to fi xed income.

23 REVENUE
 GROUP
    2005 2004
   $’000 $’000

 Sales of goods 160,237 136,258
 Service income 18,224 8,268
 Management and consultancy services 1,892 899
 Rental income 95 279
 Scrap sales 1,216 1,041
 Others       100      -     

 Total 181,764 146,745

24 OTHER OPERATING INCOME
 GROUP
    2005 2004
   $’000 $’000

 Gain on disposal of quoted equity shares 1,065 -    
 Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment 298 3,969
 Gain on liquidation of funds under management 835 -    
 Interest income on bank deposits 389 184
 Others    197    134

2,784 4,287
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25 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES
 GROUP
    2005 2004
   $’000 $’000

 (a) Cost of defi ned contribution plan included in employee
     benefi ts expenses 1,846 1,590

 The employees of Teckwah Industrial Corporation Ltd and its subsidiaries that are located in 
Singapore, Malaysia and People’s Republic of China are members of state-managed retirement 
benefi t plans operated by the government of the respective countries.  The company and the 
subsidiaries are required to contribute a specifi ed percentage of payroll costs to these retirement 
benefi t schemes to fund benefi ts. The only obligation of the group with respect to these retirement 
benefi t plans is to make the specifi ed contributions.

 The employee benefi t expenses include a share of the employee benefi t expenses of the joint 
venture through proportionate consolidation.

(b) Compensation of directors and key management personnel

 The remuneration of directors and other members of key management during the year was as 
follows:

 GROUP
    2005 2004
   $’000 $’000

  Short-term benefi ts 2,891 2,481
  Post-employment benefi ts    102     132

2,993 2,613

 The remuneration of directors is determined by the remuneration committee have regard to the 
performance of individuals and market trends.

(c) Share-based payments

 The company have a Share Option Scheme for all employees and directors of the company. 

 The option holder is entitled to subscribe for a specifi c number of new ordinary shares of $0.10 
each in the company comprised in the option.  The exercise price shall be determined by the Share 
Option Scheme Committee at its absolute discretion and fi xed by the Committee as the price equal 
to the average of the last dealt price for the company’s share, as determined by reference to the 
Offi cial List published by the Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited (“SGX-ST”), for the 
last fi ve market days immediate preceding the offering date of the option.  In no event shall the 
exercise price be less than the nominal value of the share of the company. 
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25 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (cont’d)

 The consideration for the grant of an option is $1.00.  Options granted shall be exercisable during 
the relevant option period commencing after the fi rst anniversary but before the fi fth anniversary 
of the date of the grant.  Options granted will lapse when the option holder ceases to be a full-
term employee of the company or any company within the group subject to certain exceptions at 
the discretion of the board of directors.

 Details of the share options outstanding during the year are as follows:

 The Group and The Company
 2005 2004
  Weighted  Weighted
  average  average
 Number of exercise Number of exercise
 share options price share options price
  $  $

 Outstanding at the beginning
    of the year 6,546,000 0.169 7,002,000 0.169
 Forfeited during the year   (216,000) 0.172    (144,000) 0.185
 Exercised during the year -        -    (312,000) 0.167

 Outstanding at the end of the year 6,330,000 0.169 6,546,000 0.169

 Exercisable at the end of the year 6,330,000  6,546,000

All of the outstanding share options have rested as at January 1, 2005, the effective date of 
FRS102 Share-based Payments and accordingly no expense for share-based payment have been 
recorded in the fi nancial statements under the transitional provision of FRS102.

26 FINANCE COSTS
 GROUP
    2005 2004
   $’000 $’000

 Interest expense on:
    Bank borrowings 185 427
    Finance leases 206 366

    Total 391 793
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27 PROFIT BEFORE TAX

 Profi t for the year has been arrived after charging/(crediting):
 GROUP
    2005 2004
   $’000 $’000

 Directors’ remuneration:
    Directors of the company 1,287 987
    Directors of the subsidiaries 1,107 1,111
 Directors’ fees:
    Directors of the company 122 120
 Audit fees paid to auditors:
    Auditors of the company 191 242
    Other auditors 180 121
 Non-audit fees for:
    Auditors of the company 41 38
    Other auditors 27 25
 Foreign exchange adjustment losses (net) 213 732
 Allowance for inventories 457 203
 Impairment loss on:
    Plant and equipment (1) -      142
    Associate (1)       571    -    
 Allowance for doubtful trade receivables  22 48
 Trade debts written off     446    -    
 Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 6,289 6,548
 Amortisation of intangible assets  10 11

(1) Included in other operating expenses in the profi t and loss statement.

28 INCOME TAX EXPENSE
 GROUP
    2005 2004
   $’000 $’000

 Current  2,220 4,398
 Deferred 135 (2,756)
 Underprovision in prior years:
    Current tax 51 106
    Deferred      94 1,475

 Income tax expense for the year 2,500 3,223

 Domestic income tax is calculated at 20% (2004 : 20%) of the estimated assessable profi t for the year. 
Taxation for other jurisdictions is calculated at the rates prevailing in the relevant jurisdictions.
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28 INCOME TAX EXPENSE (cont’d)

 The total charge for the year can be reconciled to the accounting profi t as follows:

 GROUP
 2005 2004
 $’000 % $’000 %

 Tax at the domestic income tax rate
    of 20% (2004 : 20%) 1,693 20.0 1,652 20.0
 Effect of share of results of associates 57 0.7 -     -
 Effect of expenses that are not
    deductible in determining taxable profi t 462 4.8 241 2.9
 Tax-exempt income (53) (0.6) (87) (1.1)
 Effect of different tax rates of
    subsidiaries operating in other jurisdiction  157 1.9 129 1.6
 Effect of changes in tax rates -     - (231) (2.8)
 Deferred tax benefi ts not recognised  210 3.1 49 0.6
 Utilisation of unabsorbed reinvestment
    allowance (155) (1.8) -     -
 Utilisation of deferred tax benefi ts
    previously not recognised (16) (0.2) (111) (1.3)
 Underprovision in prior years    145   1.7 1,581 19.1

 Total income tax expense 2,500 29.6 3,223 39.0

 In accordance with the tax legislations in the People’s Republic of China (“PRC”) applicable to foreign 
investment enterprise, certain subsidiaries in the PRC are entitled to exemptions from PRC income tax for 
two years commencing from their fi rst profi t-making year of operations, after offsetting all unused tax 
losses carried forward from the previous years, and thereafter, entitled to a 50% relief from PRC income 
tax for the next three years.

 Certain subsidiary companies of the joint venture (Note 11) were granted tax incentives in the form of 
investment tax allowance under the Promotion of Investment Act, 1986 (as amended) and reinvestment 
allowance under the Income Tax Act, 1967 of Malaysia.  As of December 31, 2005, certain subsidiaries 
of the joint venture have tax exempt income amounting to approximately $ 6,124,000 (RM13,896,000) 
[2004 : $7,063,000 (RM16,415,000)] arising from tax payable on chargeable income waived in 1999 in 
accordance with the Income Tax Act, 1999 (as amended), investment tax allowances and reinvestment 
allowances claimed and utilised under Schedule 7A of the Income Tax Act, 1967.  This tax exempt income 
which is subject to approval by the Malaysian tax authority, is available for the distribution of tax-exempt 
dividends to the shareholders of the subsidiaries.

 As of December 31, 2005, the joint venture has tax-exempt income amounting to about $1,058,000 
(RM2,400,000) [2004 : $1,033,000 (RM2,400,000)] arising from tax-exempt dividends receivable from 
one of its subsidiary.
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28 INCOME TAX EXPENSE (cont’d)

 As of December 31, 2005, a subsidiary of the joint venture has unutilised reinvestment allowances of 
about $2,833,000 (RM6,429,000) [2004 : $3,571,000 (RM8,299,000)] which if agreed with the tax 
authorities, are available for offset against future taxable income of the subsidiary.

 Subject to agreement with the Comptroller of Income Tax and compliance with certain conditions of the 
relevant tax legislations, certain subsidiaries have unabsorbed tax losses and capital allowances which are 
available for set off against future taxable income of the respective subsidiaries as follows:

 GROUP
    2005 2004
   $’000 $’000
 Tax losses

 At beginning of fi nancial year 1,668 1,573
 Prior year adjustment 77 98
 Arising in current fi nancial year 825 130
 Expired in current fi nancial year -       (134)
 Currency realignment      70    -    

 At end of fi nancial year 2,640 1,667

 Timing differences

 At beginning of fi nancial year 1,822 2,629
 Prior year adjustment (37) (524)
 Utilised in current fi nancial year (412)   (283)
 Currency realignment      44    -    

 At end of fi nancial year 1,417 1,822

 Deferred tax benefi t on above, unrecorded 1,062    784

 Unutilised tax losses at December 31, 2005 include the following amounts derived from subsidiaries in 
the PRC which will expire in the following years:

 Year Amount
  $’000

2007 106
2008 387
2009 473
2010 322
2011 579
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 29 DIVIDENDS
 GROUP AND COMPANY
    2005 2004
   $’000 $’000
 a) Dividends paid during the year were as follow:

  (i) Final dividends of 6% (2004 : 6%) per ordinary share
   less tax in respect of the preceding year  1,094 1,094

  (ii) Special dividends of 4% (2004 : Nil%) per ordinary
   share less tax in respect of the preceding year    730    -    

    1,824 1,094
 b) Proposed dividends comprise:

  (i) Proposed fi nal dividends of 10% (2004 : 6%)
   per ordinary shares less tax 1,824 1,094
  (ii) Proposed special dividends of Nil% (2004 : 4%)
   per ordinary share less tax     -        730

    1,824 1,824

 The proposed dividends are subject to approval by shareholders at the Annual General Meeting and have 
not been included as liabilities in the balance sheet.

30 EARNINGS PER SHARE 

 The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share attributable to the ordinary equity holders of 
the company is based on the following data:

 GROUP
    2005 2004
    $’000 $’000
 Earnings

 Earnings for the purposes of basic and diluted earnings per share 
 (profi t for the year attributable to equity holders of the company) 5,278 4,888

    2005 2004
   ’000 ’000
 Number of shares

 Weighted average number of ordinary shares for the purposes of
      basic earnings per share  228,002 227,849
 Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares arising from share options       434     1,636
 Weighted average number of ordinary shares for the purpose
      of diluted earnings per share  228,436 229,485
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31 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
 GROUP COMPANY
    2005 2004 2005 2004
   $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000
 Guarantees given to banks and
    leasing companies in respect of
    credit facilities and fi nance lease
    obligations of subsidiaries and
    associates (unsecured) 2,244 4,272 49,488 39,202

 The amount of guarantees given by the company relates to facilities granted to the group and the group 
has not utilised these facilities fully.

32 COMMITMENTS
 GROUP AND COMPANY
    2005 2004
   $’000 $’000
 Estimated amounts committed for future
    capital expenditure but not provided
    for in the fi nancial statements 23    5

33 OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS
 GROUP
    2005 2004
   $’000 $’000

 Minimum lease payments paid under operating leases
    included in profi t and loss statement 1,520 3,912

 At December 31, 2005, the commitments in respect of operating leases with a term of more than one 
year were as follows:

 GROUP
    2005 2004
   $’000 $’000

 Within 1 year 1,426 1,371
 In the second to fi fth year inclusive 199 1,922
 After 5 years    -           56

 Total excluding the commitments stated in the following paragraphs 1,625 3,349

 The company sold its leasehold property and fi ttings to a third party in 2004 and the property and fi ttings 
were leased back by the company for 10 years from August 2004.  Quarterly rent and service charges of 
$1,366,000 is payable for the fi rst 3 years of the lease.  Thereafter, increase in rent and service charges 
is determined with reference to any increase in the consumer price index provided that such increase will 
not exceed 2.5% of the rent and service charges for the preceding year.

 The company has the option to renew the lease for an additional 5 years at a rate to be agreed with the 
landlord.
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34 SEGMENT INFORMATION

 a) Business segments

 The business of the group is categorised into the following business segments:

i) Print which includes printing and packaging, digital database management, packaging 
design and provision of value chain services;

ii) Non-print which includes third party logistic; return, refurbishment and remarketing services 
for computer equipment;

iii) On-line which comprises on-line gaming and distribution; and

iv) Services which includes property management and others.

 Segment information includes results and identifi able net assets of the joint venture which is 
accounted for through proportionate accounting.  Total assets by segments are those assets that 
are used in the operations of each segment.

 Segment information:

i) Segment revenue and expense are revenue and expense reported in the group’s profi t and 
loss statement that are either directly attributable to a segment or can be allocated on a 
reasonable basis to a segment.

ii) Segment assets are employed by a segment in its operating activities and are either directly 
attributable to the segment or can be allocated to the segment on a reasonable basis. 
Segment assets exclude funds under management and investment in associates.

iii) Segment liabilities are liabilities of a segment incurred in its operating activities and 
are either directly attributable to the segment or can be allocated to the segment on a 
reasonable basis.  Segment liabilities exclude borrowings from fi nancial institutions and 
income tax liabilities.

iv) Inter-segment sales are accounted for at prices which are generally established by reference 
to similar transactions with third parties.
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34 SEGMENT INFORMATION (cont’d)

 a) Business segments
 Print Non-print On-line Services Elimination Total
 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

2005

REVENUE
 External sales 161,665 19,451 378 270 -  181,764
 Inter-segment sales    9,937 514 -    9,651 (20,102) -     
 Total income 171,602 19,965 378 9,921 (20,102) 181,764

RESULT
 Segment result 8,775 4,356 (4,821) (1,956) - 6,354
 Interest income      389
 Other non-operating income        2,395
 Profi t from operations      9,138
 Finance costs      (391)
 Share of results of associate      (283)
 Profi t before income tax      8,464
 Income tax       (2,500)

 Profi t after income tax      5,964

OTHER INFORMATION
 Capital expenditure 4,205 29 180 111 -      4,525

 Depreciation and amortisation    5,553 95 222 429 -      6,299

2004

REVENUE
 External sales 137,575 8,100 460 610 -      146,745
 Inter-segment sales   24,194 1,167    -     10,439 (35,800)      -     
 Total income 161,769 9,267    460 11,049 (35,800) 146,745

RESULT
 Segment result 8,189 1,551 (2,837) (971) -      5,932
 Interest income      184
 Other non-operating income      3,242
 Profi t from operations      9,358
 Finance costs      (793)
 Share of results of associate      (303)
 Profi t before income tax      8,262
 Income tax       (3,223)

 Profi t after income tax      5,039

 OTHER INFORMATION
 Capital expenditure    6,333      92    675        90    -         7,190

 Depreciation and amortisation    5,232    118    147   1,062    -         6,559
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34 SEGMENT INFORMATION (cont’d)

 a) Business segments
 Print Non-print On-line Services Elimination Total
 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

2005

 BALANCE SHEET

 Assets

 Segment assets 116,108 14,918 762 2,442 -   134,230
 Investment in associates      382
 Consolidated total assets      134,612

 Liabilities

 Segment liabilities 37,710 3,474 123 1,827 -      43,134
 Unallocated corporate liabilities      9,935
 Consolidated total liabilities      53,069

2004

 BALANCE SHEET

 Assets

 Segment assets 93,209 9,507 1,100 2,305 -  106,121
 Investment in associates      1,236
 Unallocated corporate assets        10,054
 Consolidated total assets      117,411

 Liabilities

 Segment liabilities 23,590 2,462 165 1,529 - 27,746
 Unallocated corporate liabilities      11,947
 Consolidated total liabilities      39,693

b) Geographical segments

 The group operates in seven geographical market segments - Singapore, People’s Republic of 
China, Indonesia, Malaysia, Thailand, Japan and Australia.
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34 SEGMENT INFORMATION (cont’d)

 The following table shows the revenue based on the geographical location of customers; and the carrying 
amounts of segment assets and additions to property, plant and equipment based on geographical area 
in which the assets are located:

    Carrying  Additions to 
  amounts of property, plant
 Revenue segment assets and equipment 
 2005 2004 2005 2004 2005 2004
 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

Singapore 113,636 98,622 66,176 60,992 2,562 5,756
People’s Republic of China 46,706 31,208 38,074 29,202 488 885
Indonesia 9,133 9,364 6,785 6,175 85 122
Malaysia 6,395 5,598 14,382 19,861 1,059 257
Thailand 1,017 1,447 537 564 49 96
Japan  1,215       506 691       617 10     74
Australia    3,662      -          7,967      -         272     -    

  181,764 146,745 134,612 117,411 4,525 7,190

35 RECLASSIFICATIONS AND COMPARATIVE FIGURES

 Certain reclassifi cations have been made to the prior year’s fi nancial statements to enhance comparability 
with the current year’s fi nancial statements. As a result, certain line items have been amended on the 
face of the balance sheet and the related notes to the fi nancial statements.  Comparative fi gures have 
been adjusted to conform with the current year’s presentation.

 The items were reclassifi ed as follows:
GROUP COMPANY

 Previously After Previously After
 reported  reclassifi cation reported reclassifi cation
 2004 2004 2004 2004
 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

 Associates(a) 592 1,236 -     -    
 Goodwill(a) 3,774 3,130 -     -    

 Component of equity
      Retained earnings 52,690 54,514 33,349 35,173
      Proposed dividends   1,824      -       1,824     -    

  58,880 58,880 35,173 35,173

 (a)   The goodwill relating to associate is now included within the carrying value of investment in associates.
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In the opinion of the directors, the accompanying fi nancial statements set out on pages 36 to 85 are drawn up 
so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the group and of the company as at December 31, 
2005, and the changes in equity of the group and of the company and the results and cash fl ows of the group 
for the fi nancial year then ended and at the date of this statement there are reasonable grounds to believe that 
the company will be able to pay its debts as and when they fall due.

ON BEHALF OF THE DIRECTORS

...............................................
Chua Kee Seng Thomas

...............................................
Ng Nai Ping

March 20, 2006

STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS
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STATISTICS OF SHAREHOLDINGS
AS AT March 13, 2006

NUMBER OF FULLY PAID AND ISSUED SHARES 228,002,248
CLASS OF SHARES Ordinary Shares 
VOTING RIGHTS 1 vote per share

DISTRIBUTION OF SHAREHOLDINGS

Size of Holdings No. of Shareholders % No. of Shares % 

 1 - 999 - - - -
 1,000  -  10,000 3,049  70.61  12,878,224  5.65 
10,001 - 1,000,000 1,252  29.00  62,215,000  27.29
1,000,001 and above 17  0.39  152,909,024  67.06

    4,318  100.00 228,002,248  100.00

TWENTY LARGEST SHAREHOLDERS 

Name  No of Shares %

1 Chua Seng Tek Holdings Pte Ltd 49,871,980 21.87
2 Lee Kay Huan Holdings Pte Ltd  32,216,900 14.13
3 Tan Beng Teck Holdings Pte Ltd 29,924,900 13.12
4 DBS Nominees Pte Ltd           9,650,104 4.23
5 Lim Choon Eng                  7,684,104 3.37
6 Hong Leong Finance Nominees Pte Ltd 5,479,000 2.40
7 CIMB-GK Securities Pte. Ltd.   3,002,000 1.32
8 OCBC Securities Private Ltd    2,657,000 1.17
9 United Overseas Bank Nominees Pte Ltd 2,110,000 0.93
10 Phillip Securities Pte Ltd     2,057,000 0.90
11 UOB Kay Hian Pte Ltd           1,961,000 0.86
12 Goh Bong Chee 1,082,400 0.47
13 Goh Kim Seng                   1,048,436 0.46
14 Goh Geok Khim                  1,048,400 0.46
15 Goh Kim Soon                   1,048,400 0.46
16 Goh Poh Choo                   1,048,400 0.46
17 Chua Kee Teang 1,019,000 0.45
18 Rockville Holdings Pte Ltd     936,000 0.41
19 Kim Eng Securities Pte. Ltd.   916,000 0.40
20 Wong Sing Fang                 849,000 0.37

TOTAL 155,610,024 68.24

The percentage of shareholding held in the hands of the public is approximately 47.17% which is more than 
10% of the issued share capital of the Company.  Therefore Rule 723 of the Listing Manual of the Singapore 
Exchange Securities Trading Limited has been complied with.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS AS AT MARCH 13, 2006
as recorded in the Company’s Register of Substantial Shareholders

 Direct Interest Deemed Interest
Name of Substantial Shareholder No. of Shares % No. of Shares %
    
Chua Seng Tek Holdings Pte Ltd 49,871,980 21.87 7,000,000 3.07
Lee Kay Huan Holdings Pte Ltd  32,216,900 14.13 - -
Tan Beng Teck Holdings Pte Ltd  29,924,900  13.12 - -

Notes:

1) Chua Seng Tek Holdings Pte Ltd is deemed to have an interest in the 7,000,000 shares held by DBS 
Nominees Pte Ltd.

2) Mr Lee Chee Sit and Mr Lee Chee Peck are deemed to have an interest in the 32,216,900 shares 
which Lee Kay Huan Holdings Pte Ltd has an interest in by virtue of the provisions of Section 7 of the 
Companies Act, Cap. 50.

3) Mr Tan Beng Teck and Mr Tan Ee Chian are deemed to have an interest in the 29,924,900 shares 
which Tan Beng Teck Holdings Pte Ltd has an interest in by virtue of the provisions of Section 7 of the 
Companies Act, Cap. 50.
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
TECKWAH INDUSTRIAL CORPORATION LTD
Company Registration No. 197201105E
(Incorporated in Singapore)

Notice is hereby given that the Annual General Meeting of the Company will be held at 25 Pandan Crescent 
#05-15 TIC Tech Centre Singapore 128477 on Thursday, April 27, 2006 at 9.30 a.m. to transact the following 
business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS
1. To receive and consider the directors’ report and accounts for the year ended December 31, 2005 and the 

auditor’s report thereon.   (Resolution 1)

2. To declare a fi rst and fi nal dividend of 10% (1.0 cent per share) less tax in respect of the year ended 
December 31 , 2005.  (Resolution 2)

3. To re-elect the following Directors retiring pursuant to the Company’s Articles of Association:-

 (i) Ms Mai Ah Ngo [See Explanatory Note (a)] (Resolution 3)
 (ii) Mr Ng Nai Ping [See Explanatory Note (b)] (Resolution 4) 
 (iii) Mr Lim Lee Meng [See Explanatory Note (c)] (Resolution 5)

4. To re-appoint Auditors and to authorise the Directors to fi x their remuneration. (Resolution 6)

5. To approve the proposed Directors’ fees of $120,000  for the year ended December 31, 2005. 

 (2004 : $120,000)  (Resolution 7)

6. To transact any other business of the Company which may properly be transacted at an Annual General 
Meeting.

SPECIAL BUSINESS

To consider and, if thought fi t, to pass the following resolutions as ordinary resolutions:-

7.   “That pursuant to Section 161 of the Companies Act, Chapter. 50 and the listing rules of the Singapore 
Exchange Securities Trading Limited, the Directors be and are hereby authorised to issue shares in the 
Company (whether by way of bonus issue, rights issue or otherwise) at any time and upon such terms and 
conditions and for such purposes and to such persons as the Directors may, in their absolute discretion, deem 
fi t provided that:

 (i) the aggregate number of shares to be issued pursuant to this Resolution does not exceed 50% of the 
total number of shares issued by the Company, of which the aggregate number of shares to be issued 
other than on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders of the Company does not exceed 20% of the 
total number of shares issued by the Company; 

 (ii) for the purpose of determining the aggregate number of shares that may be issued under (i) above, 
the percentage of the number of shares to be issued shall be based on the total number of shares 
issued by the Company at the time this Resolution is passed, after adjusting for 

  (a) new shares arising from the conversion or exercise of any convertible securities or employee 
share options or vesting of share awards that are outstanding or subsisting at the time this 
Resolution is passed; and

  (b) any subsequent consolidation or subdivision of shares; and

 (iii) unless revoked or varied by the Company in general meeting, such authority conferred by this 
Resolution shall continue in force until the conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting of the 
Company or the date by which the next Annual General Meeting of the Company is required by law 
to be held, whichever is the earlier.” [see Explanatory Note (d)]. (Resolution 8)
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Notice is hereby given that the Transfer Books and Register of Members of the Company will be closed on 
11 May 2006 for the preparation of dividend warrants.

Duly completed transfers received by the Company’s Registrar, Tricor Barbinder & Co Pte Ltd of 8 Cross Street 
#11-00 PWC Building Singapore 048424, up to the close of business at 5 p.m. on 10 May 2006 will be registered 
to determine shareholders’ entitlement to the proposed dividend. The dividend, if approved, will be paid on 25 May 
2006 to shareholders registered in the books of the Company on 10 May 2006.

In respect of shares in securities accounts with the Central Depository (Pte) Limited (“CDP”), the said fi nal dividend 
will be paid by the Company to CDP which will in turn distribute the dividend entitlements to holders of shares in 
accordance with its practice.

By Order of the Board

Chuang Sheue Ling/Lo Swee Oi
Company Secretaries
11 April 2006
Singapore

Explanatory Notes:

(a) Ms Mai Ah Ngo has been appointed as Group Executive Director of the Company since 25 June 1993.  Full 
particulars of Ms Mai are set out on page 12 of the Annual Report.

(b) Mr Ng Nai Ping has been appointed as the Executive Director of the Company since 15 February 1995.  Full 
particulars of Mr Ng are set out on page 12 of the Annual Report.

(c) Mr Lim Lee Meng, if re-elected, will remain as the Chairman of Audit Committee, a Member each of 
Remuneration Committee and Share Options Committee.  Mr Lim is considered an Independent director 
for purposes of Rule 704(8) of the Listing Manual of Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited.  Full 
particulars on Mr Lim are set out on page 13 of the Annual Report.

(d)  Ordinary Resolution 8, if passed, will empower the Directors from the date of the Annual General Meeting 
until the date of the next Annual General Meeting to issue further shares in the Company. The maximum 
number of shares, which the Directors may issue under this resolution, shall not exceed the quantum set out 
in the resolution.

Notes to Proxy Form:

(i) A member entitled to attend and vote at this meeting is entitled to appoint a proxy to attend and vote in his 
stead.  A proxy need not be a member of the Company.

(ii) If a proxy is to be appointed, the form must be deposited at the registered offi ce of the Company, 
25 Pandan Crescent #05-15 TIC Tech Centre Singapore 128477 not less than 48 hours before the meeting.

(iii) The form of proxy must be signed by the appointor or his attorney duly authorised in writing.

(iv) In the case of joint shareholders, all holders must sign the form of proxy.

NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING



I/We  (Name)

of  (Address)

being a member/members of TECKWAH INDUSTRIAL CORPORATION LTD hereby appoint:-

 
Name Address

 NRIC/Passport  Proportion of
   Number Shareholdings (%)

and/or (delete as appropriate)

 
Name Address

 NRIC/Passport  Proportion of 
   Number  Shareholdings (%)

or failing whom, the Chairman of the Meeting, as my/our proxy/proxies to vote for me/us on my/our behalf, at 
the Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held on Thursday, April 27, 2006 at 9.30 a.m. and at any 
adjournment thereof.  

I/We have indicated with an “x” in the appropriate box below how I/we wish my/our proxy/proxies to vote.  If no 
specifi c direction as to voting is given, my/our proxy/proxies will vote or abstain from voting at his/their discretion, as 
he/they will on any other matter arising at the Meeting.

 No. Resolutions For Against

 1. Adoption of Directors’ Reports and Accounts  

 2. Declaration of fi rst & fi nal dividend  

 3. Re-election of Ms Mai Ah Ngo   

 4. Re-election of Mr Ng Nai Ping   

 5. Re-election of Mr Lim Lee Meng  

 6. Re-appointment of Auditors  

 7. Approval of Directors’ Fees  

 8. Authority to issue additional shares pursuant to Section 161 of the 
  Companies Act, Cap. 50.  

Dated this  day of  2006.

Signature(s) of Member(s)/Common Seal

IMPORTANT: PLEASE READ NOTES OVERLEAF

Important

1.  For investors who have used their CPF monies to buy 
Teckwah shares, this Annual Report is sent to them at 
the request of their CPF Approved Nominees solely FOR 
INFORMATION ONLY.

2. This Proxy Form is FOR USE ONLY BY MEMBERS whose 
shares in Teckwah are registered in their names.  It is not 
valid for use by CPF investors and persons whose shares are 
not registered in their own names, and shall be ineffective 
for all intents and purposes if used or purported to be used 
by them.

PROXY FORM

TECKWAH INDUSTRIAL CORPORATION LTD
Company Registration No. 197201105E
(Incorporated in Singapore)

Total No. of Shares Held



NOTES

1. A member entitled to attend and vote at the Meeting is entitled to appoint one or two proxies to attend and 
vote in his stead.

2. Where a member appoints more than one proxy, the appointments shall be invalid unless he specifi es the 
proportion of his holding (expressed as a percentage of the whole) to be represented by each proxy.

3. A proxy need not be a member of the Company.

4. A member should insert the total number of shares held. If the member has shares entered against his name 
in the Depository Register (as defi ned in Section 130A of the Companies Act, Cap. 50 of Singapore), he 
should insert that number of shares. If the member has shares registered in his name in the Register of 
Members of the Company, he should insert that number of shares. If the member has shares entered against 
his name in the Depository Register and registered in his name in the Register of Members, he should insert 
the aggregate number of shares. If no number is inserted, this form of proxy will be deemed to relate to all 
shares held by the member.

5. The instrument appointing a proxy or proxies must be deposited at the Company’s registered offi ce at 25 
Pandan Crescent #05-15 TIC Tech Centre Singapore 128477 not less than 48 hours before the time set for 
the Meeting.

6. The instrument appointing a proxy or proxies must be under the hand of the appointor or of his attorney 
duly authorised in writing. Where the instrument appointing a proxy or proxies is executed by a corporation, 
it must be executed either under its common seal or under the hand of its attorney or a duly authorised 
offi cer.

7. Where an instrument appointing a proxy is signed on behalf of the appointor by an attorney, the letter or 
power of attorney or a duly certifi ed copy thereof must (failing previous registration with the Company) be 
lodged with the instrument of proxy, failing which the instrument may be treated as invalid.

GENERAL

The Company shall be entitled to reject a Proxy Form which is incomplete, improperly completed, illegible or where 
the true intentions of the appointor are not ascertainable from the instructions of the appointor specifi ed on the 
Proxy Form. In addition, in the case of shares entered in the Depository Register, the Company may reject a Proxy 
Form if the member, being the appointor, is not shown to have shares entered against his name in the Depository 
Register as at 48 hours before the time appointed for holding the Meeting, as certifi ed by The Central Depository 
(Pte) Limited to the Company.
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Teckwah Industrial Corporation Ltd
Company Registration No: 197201105E

25 Pandan Crescent #05-15
TIC Tech Centre Singapore 128477

Tel: (65) 6872 8181 Fax: (65) 6872 8199
Website: www.teckwah.com.sg




